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PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We refer to Highwoods Properties, Inc. as the “Canyy’ Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership as ti@pérating Partnershipthe
Company’s common stock as “Common Stock” or “Comn&irares,” the Company’s preferred stock as “PrefeStock” or Preferre
Shares,” the Operating Partnership’s common pastigrinterests as “Common Units,” the Operatingtri@aships preferred partnerst
interests as “Preferred Units” and in-service proee (excluding forsale residential condominiums) to which the Compang/or th
Operating Partnership have title and 100.0% owmgmdghts as the “Wholly Owned Properties.” Refares to “we” and “our’mean th
Company and the Operating Partnership, collectjuaijess the context indicates otherwise.

The partnership agreement provides that the Opgr&artnership will assume and pay when due, orbgise the Company for paym
of, all costs and expenses relating to the ownprsiid operations of, or for the benefit of, the @girg Partnership. The partners
agreement further provides that all expenses o€tirapany are deemed to be incurred for the beoiefite Operating Partnership.

Certain information contained herein is presenteafaApril 19, 2013, the latest practicable date for financial infotima prior to ths
filing of this Quarterly Report.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Unaudited and in thousands, except share anchpee slata)

March 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Assets:
Real estate assets, at cost:
Land $ 380,93: % 371,73(
Buildings and tenant improvements 3,365,15. 3,281,36:
Development in process 29,20¢ 21,19¢
Land held for development 122,82! 117,78:
3,898,12 3,792,07.
Less-accumulated depreciation (966,449 (939,55()
Net real estate assets 2,931,67 2,852,52.
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale 4,39¢ 18,93¢
Cash and cash equivalents 12,17( 13,78:
Restricted cash 14,79( 19,70:
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,923 $2848, respectively 25,06 23,07:
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowan&8¥ and $182, respectively 25,47: 25,47:
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwalace of $1,034 and $880, respectively 122,09¢ 116,58
Investments in and advances to unconsolidate deaéfd 66,14 66,80(
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdatad amortization of $82,472 and $77,219, respelsti 176,81t 169,09:
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net of accedhalaortization of $12,587 and $12,318,
respectively 41,97 44,45¢
Total Assets $ 3420590 $ 3,350,422
Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership and Equity:
Mortgages and notes payable $ 1,896,300 $ 1,859,16
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiedil 167,55: 172,14¢
Financing obligations 29,25! 29,35¢
Total Liabilities 2,093,10. 2,060,66!
Commitments and contingencies
Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partngrsh 147,31 124,86
Equity:
Preferred Stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 awtbdrshares;

8.625% Series A Cumulative Redeemable PreferredeStiguidation preference $1,000 per share), 20,0

shares issued and outstanding 29,077 29,077
Common Stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 authdshares;

82,130,593 and 80,311,437 shares issued and aditejanespectively 821 80¢
Additional paid-in capital 2,076,08 2,040,301
Distributions in excess of net income availabledommon stockholders (919,329 (897,419
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (11,270 (12,62¢)

Total Stockholders’ Equity 1,175,48 1,160,141
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates 4,691 4,75:

Total Equity 1,180,17 1,164,89:
Total Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in ti@perating Partnership and Equity $ 342059 §$ 335042

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per share asjoun

Three Months Ended March

31,
2013 2012
Rental and other revenues $ 137,03( $ 124,89:
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 48,94: 44,37¢
Depreciation and amortization 42,14« 36,98
Impairments of real estate assets 41k —
General and administrative 10,58: 9,67:
Total operating expenses 102,08: 91,03
Interest expense:
Contractual 22,79¢ 23,85!
Amortization of deferred financing costs 94¢ 90z
Financing obligations 121 (76)
23,86¢ 24,677
Other income:
Interest and other income 1,78¢ 2,23(
Losses on debt extinguishment (164 —
1,61¢ 2,23(
Income from continuing operations before dispositin of condominiums and equity in earnings/(losses) o
unconsolidated affiliates 12,69¢ 11,41
Gains on for-sale residential condominiums — 65
Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iaffis 43¢ (162
Income from continuing operations 13,13t 11,31¢
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations 94 1,88:
Impairments of real estate assets held for sale (719) —
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations 1,24¢ 5,13¢
62E 7,01¢
Net income 13,76( 18,33:
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim the Operating Partnership (581) (827)
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteseim consolidated affiliates (209) (1849
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627)
Net income available for common stockholders $ 1234¢ $ 16,69¢
Earnings per Common Share — basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 01¢ % 0.14
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 0.01 0.0¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 01t % 0.2t
Weighted average Common Shares outstanding — basic 81,02¢ 72,83¢
Earnings per Common Share — diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 01¢ $ 0.14
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon stockholders 0.01 0.0¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 01t % 0.2t
Weighted average Common Shares outstanding —dilute 84,86: 76,69¢
Dividends declared per Common Share $ 0.42t $ 0.42¢
Net income available for common stockholders:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 11,75: $ 10,02:
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon stockholders 597 6,672

Net income available for common stockholders $ 12,34¢ $ 16,69




See accompanying notes to consolidated financgstents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond
Unrealized gains on cash flow hedges
Amortization of cash flow hedges
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Less-comprehensive (income) attributable to nonodirty interests

Comprehensive income attributable to common stddens

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
$ 13,76( $ 18,33.
39C 287
28C 1,104
78¢€ (39)
1,45¢ 1,35¢
15,21¢ 19,69(
(7849 (1,017
$ 14,43 $ 18,67¢
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Balance at December 31, 2012

Issuances of Common Stock, net

Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock
Dividends on Common Stock

Dividends on Preferred Stock

Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opierg
Partnership to fair value

Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated
affiliates

Issuances of restricted stock

Share-based compensation expense

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Equity

(Unaudited and in thousands, except share amounts)

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteee the

Operating Partnership

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteees
consolidated affiliates

Comprehensive income:

Net income

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Balance at March 31, 2013

Balance at December 31, 2011

Issuances of Common Stock, net

Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock
Dividends on Common Stock

Dividends on Preferred Stock

Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opierg
Partnership to fair value

Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated
affiliates

Issuances of restricted stock

Share-based compensation expense

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéees the

Operating Partnership

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intese
consolidated affiliates

Comprehensive income:

Net income

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Balance at March 31, 2012

Series A Distributions in
Cumulative Non-controlling Excess of Net
Redeemable Accumulated Interests in Income Available
Number of Common Preferred Additional Paid- Other Compre- Consolidated for Common
Common Shares Stock Shares In Capital hensive Loss Affiliates Stockholders Total
80,311,43 $ 8032 $ 29,077 $ 2,040,301 $ (12,628 $ 4,75% $ (897,419 $ 1,164,89:
1,664,51! 17 —_ 55,787 —_ —_ —_ 55,80«
10,07: = = 351 = = = 351
—_ —_ —_ —_ —_ (34,259 (34,259
— — — — — (627) (627)
—_ —_ (23,807 —_ —_ —_ (23,807
— — — — (265) — (265)
144,56t — — — — — — —
1 — 3,43¢ — — — 3,44(
_ _ _ — — (581 (58))
— = — — 203 (203) =
— — — — — 13,76( 13,76(
—_ —_ —_ 1,45¢ —_ —_ 1,45¢
15,21¢
82,130,59 $ 821 $ 29,077 $ 2,076,08. $ (11,170  $ 4,691 $ (919,32 $ 1,180,17:
Series A Distributions in
Cumulative Non-controlling Excess of Net
Redeemable Accumulated Interests in Income Available
Number of Common Preferred Additional Paid- Other Compre- Consolidated for Common
Common Shares Stock Shares In Capital hensive Loss Affiliates Stockholders Total
72,647,69 $ 72€ $ 29,077 $ 1,803,99 $ (5,739 $ 4,64¢ $ (845,85) $ 986,85¢
807,48! 8 — 26,63¢ — — — 26,64¢
2,00C — — 63 — — — 63
— — — — — (30,96) (30,962)
= = = = = (627) (627)
— — (14,360 — — — (14,360
= = = = (297) = (297)
151,39: —_ —_ —_ —_ —_ —_ —_
2 = 2,42( = = = 2,422
— — — — — (827) (827)
= = = = 184 (189 =
— — — — — 18,33: 18,33:
— — — 1,35¢ — — 1,35¢
19,69(
73,608,57 $ 73€ $ 29,077 $ 1,818,75 $ 4,37¢ $ 4,53¢ $ (860,12) $ 988,60t

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&sients.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31,

2013 2012

Operating activities:

Net income $ 13,76( $ 18,33:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 42,29: 38,51t
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisitiolated intangible assets and liabilities (136) 6¢
Share-based compensation expense 3,44( 2,42;
Allowance for losses on accounts and accrued sirdiite rents receivable 42¢ 57¢
Amortization of deferred financing costs 94¢ 90z
Amortization of cash flow hedges 78¢ 33
Impairments of real estate assets 41k —
Impairments of real estate assets held for sale 713 —
Losses on debt extinguishment 164 —
Net gains on disposition of property (1,244 (5,139
Gains on for-sale residential condominiums — (65)
Equity in (earnings)/losses of unconsolidated iaffis (43€) 162
Changes in financing obligations (205) (339
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés 1,14¢ 1,38¢

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (1,479 2,47(
Prepaid expenses and other assets (2,539 (4,49)
Accrued straight-line rents receivable (5,78¢) (5,387)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheritlizdil (10,257 (27,349
Net cash provided by operating activities 42,11¢ 22,05(
Investing activities:
Investments in acquired real estate and relatesigible assets, net of cash acquired (88,337 —
Investments in development in process (4,979 —
Investments in tenant improvements and deferresirigaosts (18,009 (22,677)
Investments in building improvements (13,109 (8,487)
Net proceeds from disposition of real estate assets 14,97: 10,94:
Net proceeds from disposition of for-sale resid#r@dondominiums — 1,00¢
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated atfies 363 901
Repayments of mortgages and notes receivable — 1,481
Investments in and advances/repayments to/fromnsutidated affiliates (429) (2,199
Changes in restricted cash and other investingites 10,26: 5,12«
Net cash used in investing activities (99,259 (12,89¢)
Financing activities:
Dividends on Common Stock (34,259 (30,967)
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in theeating Partnership (1,589 (1,589
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in condated affiliates (265) (29))
Proceeds from the issuance of Common Stock 59,01¢ 28,39:
Costs paid for the issuance of Common Stock (701 —
Repurchase of shares related to tax withholdings (2,519 (1,74%)
Borrowings on revolving credit facility 135,90( 61,00(
Repayments of revolving credit facility (61,400 (282,00()
Borrowings on mortgages and notes payable — 225,00(

Renavmente nf martnanes and nntec na (7 21\ (R NRT



Additions to deferred financing costs and othearfficing activities (839 (2,24

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 55,52: (8,127

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent $ (161) $ 1,027

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gherio

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéth&incing activities:

Unrealized gains on cash flow hedges

Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock

Changes in accrued capital expenditures

Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets

Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing afehsing costs

Unrealized gains on marketable securities of noalified deferred compensation plan

Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opieiga Partnership to fair value
Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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Three Months Ended March 31,

2013 2012
$ (1,619 $ 1,027
13,78 11,18¢
$ 12,17¢  $ 12,21t

Three Months Ended March 31,

2013

2012

$ 21,88

$ 25,97(

Three Months Ended March 31,

2013 2012
$ 28C ¢ 1,104
351 63
5,15¢ 97¢
6,467 15,84:
4,87z 3,32(
28¢ 334
23,80: 14,36¢
39C 287
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2013
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)
(Unaudited)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accaiing Policies
Description of Business

Highwoods Properties, Inc., together with its cdiasded subsidiaries (the “Company”), is a fullyteégrated, self-administered and self-
managed equity real estate investment trust (“REtf&t provides leasing, management, developmenstruction and other custometatec
services for its properties and for third partiége Company conducts virtually all of its activitiehrough Highwoods Realty Limit
Partnership (the “Operating Partnership”). At Magdh 2013 , the Company and/or the Operating Prastie wholly owned: 303 iiservice
office, industrial and retail properties, comprgsiB0.1 million square feet; 648res of undeveloped land suitable for future dgweknt, ¢
which 566 acres are considered core assets; andffize development properties. In addition, we edrinterests ( 50.0% or less) in 31 in-
service office properties, a rental residentialalepment property and ldcres of undeveloped land suitable for future dgwelent, whic
includes a 12.5% interest in a 261,000 squaredtimte property directly owned by the Company (imaiuded in the Operating Partnersksip’
Consolidated Financial Statements).

The Company is the sole general partner of the &jper Partnership. At March 31, 201&he Company owned all of the Preferred L
and 81.7 million , or 95.7% , of the Common Unitstihe Operating Partnership. Limited partners,udilg twodirectors of the Compar
own the remaining 3.7 millio@ommon Units. In the event the Company issues ster€ommon Stock, the net proceeds of the issuare
contributed to the Operating Partnership in excldog additional Common Units. Generally, the OtiatpPartnership is required to rede
each Common Unit at the request of the holder tide cash equal to the value of one share ofGbmpany’s Common Stock, $ 0.@4i
value, based on the average of the market pricthéL0Otrading days immediately preceding the notice datuch redemption, provided t
the Company at its option may elect to acquiresargh Common Units presented for redemption for casine share of Common Stock.
Common Units owned by the Company are not redeema&hlring the three months ended March 31, 20h& Qompany redeemdd,07:
Common Units for a like number of shares of Comrtock. As a result of this activity, the percentajeCommon Units owned by t
Company increased from 95.6% at December 31, 2098.7% at March 31, 2013 .

Common Stock Offerings

The Company has entered into equity sales agresmsifit various financial institutions to offer asdll, from time to time, shares of
Common Stock by means of ordinary brokers' trams@ston the New York Stock Exchange or otherwismatket prices prevailing at t
time of sale, at prices related to prevailing mageices or at negotiated prices or as otherwiseemhwith any of the institutions. During
three months ended March 31, 2013 , the Compangds$,299,79%hares of Common Stock under these agreementsaakssge gross sa
price of $35.95 per share and received net procedies sales commissions, of $46.0 million .

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are preparednformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States
America (“GAAP”). Our Consolidated Balance SheeDatember 31, 201®as retrospectively revised from previously repdraéenounts t
reflect in real estate and other assets, net, fogldale those properties which qualified as held dale during théhree months end
March 31, 2013 . Our Consolidated Statements obrive for the three months ended March 31, 2@&Pe retrospectively revised fr
previously reported amounts to reflect in discamdith operations the operations for those propetegsqualified for discontinued operations.

Our Consolidated Financial Statements include ther@ting Partnership, wholly owned subsidiaries tnage entities in which we he
the controlling financial interest. All intercomparransactions and accounts have been eliminateddakch 31, 2013 an@®ecember 3.
2012 , we had involvement with, but are not thenary beneficiary in, an entity that we concludedbéca variable interest entity (see Note 3).
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accating Policies — Continued

The unaudited interim consolidated financial stanta and accompanying unaudited consolidated fiabimformation, in the opinion
management, contain all adjustments (including mbmexcurring accruals) necessary for a fair predent of our financial position, results
operations and cash flows. We have omitted certaias and other information from the interim coigaiked financial statements presente
this Quarterly Report as permitted by SEC rules regilations. These Consolidated Financial Statésr&hould be read in conjunction v
our 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemémtaccordance with GAAP requires us to make edémand assumptions that af
the amounts reported in the consolidated finarst&tements and accompanying notes. Actual resulil differ from those estimates.

2. Real Estate Assets
Acquisitions

During the first quarter of 2013, we acquired:

» two office properties in Tampa, FL encompas$iig,000 square feet for a purchase price of $521Bm,

» two office properties in Greensboro, NC encomspap 195,000 square feet for a purchase price @853illion, anc

» five acres of development land in Memphis, TNdgurchase price of $4.8 million

We expensed $0.5 millioof acquisition costs (included in general and adstiative expenses) related to these acquisitibhe. asse
acquired and liabilities assumed were recordediatvhlue as determined by management based onmafmn available at the acquisit
date and on current assumptions as to future apesat
Dispositions

During the first quarter of 2013, we sold two offiproperties in Orlando, FL for a sale price of $luillion (before $0.8 milliorin
closing credits to buyer for unfunded tenant imgroents) and recorded a loss on disposition of dismeed operations of $0.3 million.

In connection with the disposition of an office pesty in Jackson, MS in the third quarter of 20&2, had the right to receive additio
cash consideration of up to $1.5 million upon thgs$action of a certain post-closing requiremdiie postelosing requirement was satisf
and the cash consideration was received durindfithiequarter of 2013. Accordingly, we recognizedl.% million in additional gain o
disposition of discontinued operations in the fisarter of 2013.

Impairments
During the first quarter of 2013, we recorded impeEnts of real estate assets of $0.4 million on itweustrial properties located
Atlanta, GA and recorded impairments of real estetgets held for sale of $0.7 million on fivelustrial properties in Atlanta, GA. The

impairments were due to a change in the assumeadgtiof future dispositions and leasing assumptiovisich reduced the future expec
cash flows from the properties.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

3. Mortgages and Notes Receivable

The following table sets forth our mortgages antésoeceivable:

March 31, December 31,

2013 2012
Seller financing (first mortgages) $ 15,85: $ 15,85:
Less allowance — —
15,85 15,85:
Mortgage receivable 8,64¢ 8,64¢
Less allowance = =
8,64¢ 8,64¢
Promissory notes 1,40¢ 1,15
Less allowance (437) (182)
971 971
Mortgages and notes receivable, net $ 2547:  § 25,47

Our mortgages and notes receivable consist prigafikeller financing issued in conjunction withawisposition transactions in 2C
and acquisition financing provided to a third patyyer of adjacent development land in Nashvilld, T

The seller financing is evidenced by first mortgagecured by the assignment of rents and the yngreal estate assets. We eval
the collectability of the receivables by monitoritige leasing statistics and market fundamentathege assets. As of March 31, 2Q1Be
payments on both mortgages receivable were cuarahthere were no other indicators of impairmenthenreceivables. We may be requ
to take impairment charges in the future if anth®extent the underlying collateral diminishesétue.

During 2012, we provided an $8.6 millitman to a third party, which was used by such tpady to fund a portion of the purchase g
to acquire 77 acres of mixed-use development lajacant to our 68acre office development parcel in Nashville, TNtiadly, the loan i
scheduled to mature in December 2015 and bearsegttat 5.0% per year. The loan can be extendethdyhird party for up tdhree
additional years, subject to applicable increasdbe interest rate. We also agreed to loan suoth plarty approximately $8.4 millioto func
future infrastructure development on its 77 -aa@ealopment parcel. Both loans are or will be setilmgethe 77 acre development parcel.
of March 31, 2013, less than $0.1 millibas been funded to the third party for infrastreeevelopment. We concluded this arrangeme
be an interest in a variable interest entity. Hosvesince we do not have the power to direct mattleat most significantly impact t
activities of the entity, we do not qualify as themary beneficiary. Accordingly, the entity is nobnsolidated and the arrangemel
accounted for in mortgages and notes receivabtaiinConsolidated Balance Sheet at March 31, 20Q8r risk of loss with respect to t
arrangement is limited to the carrying value of th@rtgage receivable and the future infrastructieneelopment funding commitment.

The following table sets forth our notes receivatllewance, which relates only to promissory notes:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
Beginning notes receivable allowance $ 18z % 61
Recoveries/write-offs/other 25E 61
Total notes receivable allowance $§ 4371 § 122
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

4. Investments in and Advances to Affiliates
Unconsolidated Affiliates
We have equity interests of up to 50.086various joint ventures with unrelated third pestthat are accounted for using the ec

method of accounting because we have the abiligxercise significant influence over their opergtand financing policies. The followi
table sets forth combined summarized financialrimi@tion for our unconsolidated affiliates:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
Income Statements:
Rental and other revenues $ 2351¢ $ 24,82
Expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 11,20¢ 11,41¢
Depreciation and amortization 6,14¢ 6,56%
Impairments of real estate assets 4,79( 7,18(
Interest expense 4,73¢ 5,83(
Total expenses 26,88¢ 30,99:
Loss before disposition of properties (3,36¢) (6,177)
Gains on disposition of properties 24 —
Net loss $ (3349 $ (6,17))
Our share of:
Depreciation and amortization $ 201t $ 2,09¢
Impairments of real estate assets $ 1,02 $ 1,002
Interest expense $ 1,752 $ 1,98(
Gains on disposition of depreciable properties $ 421 % —
Net income/(loss) $ 4 % (795)
Our share of net income/(loss) $ 4 3 (795)
Adjustments for management and other fees 432 632
Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iaffis $ 43§ (162

During the first quarter of 2013, our DLF Il joiménture sold an office property to unrelated tluedties for a sale price &fL0.1 millior
(after $0.3 million in closing credits to buyer fioee rent) and recorded a gain on dispositionroperty of less than $0.1 millios our cos
basis is different from the basis reflected at jbet venture level, we recorded $0.4 milli@f gain through equity in earnings
unconsolidated affiliates.

During the first quarter of 2013, our DLF | joinénture recorded impairments of real estate as$&4.8 million on an office proper
located in Atlanta, GA and an office property l@zhin Charlotte, NC. We recorded $1.0 millias our share of this impairment che
through equity in earnings of unconsolidated a&fds. These impairments were due to a changeiagbumed timing of future dispositi
and leasing assumptions, which reduced the futxpeaed cash flows from the properties.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities

The following table sets forth total intangible @tssand acquisitiorelated below market lease liabilities, net of analated amortizatior

March 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Assets:
Deferred financing costs $ 21,42¢ $ 21,75¢
Less accumulated amortization (8,64¢) (7,862)
12,77¢ 13,897
Deferred leasing costs (including lease incentares above market lease and in-place lease acquoisélated
intangible assets) 237,86 224,55¢
Less accumulated amortization (73,829 (69,357
164,03t 155,19
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net $ 176,81t $ 169,09:
Liabilities (in accounts payable, accrued expensemsd other liabilities):
Acquisition-related below market lease liabilities $ 37,53t $ 37,01¢
Less accumulated amortization (4,319 (3,389
$ 33,21¢ % 33,63¢

The following table sets forth amortization of inggble assets and acquisition-related below mdeeeste liabilities:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
Amortization of deferred financing costs $ 94¢ $ 902
Amortization of deferred leasing costs and acqoisitelated intangible assets (in depreciation @martization) $ 835 $ 6,44(
Amortization of lease incentives (in rental andestrevenues) $ 38: % 34:
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assgn rental and other revenues) $ 46€ $ 27C
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assgn rental property and other expenses) $ 137 % =
Amortization of acquisition-related below markedde liabilities (in rental and other revenues) $ (1,127 % (5449

14




Table of Contents
HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities - Continued

The following table sets forth scheduled future dimation of intangible assets and below markesédbilities:

Amortization of
Deferred Leasing

Costs and Amortization of Amortization of
Acquisition- Amortization of Acquisition- Acquisition-
Related Acquisition- Related Related Below
Intangible Assets  Amortization of Related Intangible Assets  Market Lease
Amortization of (in Depreciation  Lease Incentives Intangible Assets (in Rental Liabilities (in
Deferred and (in Rental and (in Rental and Property and Rental and Other
Financing Costs Amortization) Other Revenues) Other Revenues) Other Expenses) Revenues)
April 1 through December 31, 2013 $ 2,76¢ $ 24,308 $ 96 % 1,372 % 41€ % (3,087
2014 3,24¢ 28,12t 1,154 1,531 55z (4,009
2015 2,61¢ 22,84 92¢ 1,252 G55 (3,746
2016 1,51¢ 18,48¢ 734 1,02 55z (3,449
2017 1,22¢ 15,59: 66C 90¢ 55z (3,209
Thereafter 1,40¢ 36,61° 2,10¢ 1,164 1,642 (15,726
$ 12,77¢  $ 145,96¢ $ 6,54¢ $ 7,25¢ $ 427C $ (33,219
Weighted average remaining amortization _
periods as of March 31, 2013 (in years) 5.C 6.€ 7.€ 54 7.1 9.€

The following table sets forth the intangible assetquired and below market lease liabilities asgzlias a result of 201&cquisitior

activity:
Acquisition-
Acquisition- Acquisition- Related Below
Related Related Market Lease
Intangible Assets Intangible Assets Liabilities
(amortized in (amortized in (amortized in
Rental and Other Depreciation and Rental and Other
Revenues) Amortization) Revenues)
Amount recorded from acquisition activity $ 2,771 $ 11,56: $ (1,329
Weighted average remaining amortization periodydiars) 4. 4.8 9.3
6. Mortgages and Notes Payable
The following table sets forth our mortgages antkagayable:
March 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Secured indebtedness $ 547,15( $ 549,60°
Unsecured indebtedness 1,349,15! 1,309,55!
$ 189,30 $ 1,859,16:

Total mortgages and notes payable

At March 31, 2013 our secured mortgage loans were collateralizeteblyestate assets with an aggregate undepretiatddvalue of

967.3 million .

15




Table of Contents

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

6. Mortgages and Notes Payable - Continued

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit fiagiis scheduled to mature in July 2046d includes an accordion feature that al
for an additional $ 75.0 millionf borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occurredhaue
an option to extend the maturity for an additiopadr. The interest rate at our current credit gatiis LIBOR plus 150 basis points and
annual facility fee is 35 basis points. The interage and facility fee are based on the highghefpublicly announced ratings from Moot
Investors Service or Standard & Poor's RatingsiGesv We use our revolving credit facility for warg capital purposes and for the short-
term funding of our development and acquisitionvitgtand, in certain instances, the repaymenttb&odebt. The continued ability to borr
under the revolving credit facility allows us toickly capitalize on strategic opportunities at ¢fterm interest rates. There wa8%5 millior
and $ 94.5 million outstanding under our revolvargdit facility at March 31, 2013 and April 19, Z1respectively. At botMarch 31, 201
and April 19, 2013 , we had $ 0.1 milli@f outstanding letters of credit, which reducesdkeilability on our revolving credit facility. Aa
result, the unused capacity of our revolving créaldlity at March 31, 2013 and April 19, 2013 wi377.4 million and $ 380.4 million
respectively.

During the first quarter of 2013, we prepaid thmaing $35.0 million balance on a $200.0 millibank term loan that was origine
scheduled to mature in February 2016 . We reco$@e2i million of loss on debt extinguishment relatedhis repayment.

We are currently in compliance with the debt covesand other requirements with respect to our.debt
7. Derivative Financial Instruments

We have six floating-to-fixed interest rate swapmtigh January 2019 with respect to an aggrega®225.0 million LIBORbase:
borrowings. These swaps effectively fix the undedyLIBOR rate at a weighted average of 1.678¥he counterparties under the swap:
major financial institutions. These swaps have ldesignated as and are being accounted for asfloashedges with changes in fair va
recorded in other comprehensive income each reyoperiod. No gain or loss was recognized relateloetdge ineffectiveness or to amol
excluded from effectiveness testing on our cashv fltedges during the three months ended March 313 20/e have no collater
requirements related to our interest rate swaps.

Amounts reported in accumulated other compreheriss® ("AOCL") related to derivatives will be resified to interest expense
interest payments are made on our variable-rate @ebing the period from April 1, 2013 through Mhr31, 2014, we estimate ths3.2
million will be reclassified to interest expense.

For the periods ending March 31, 2013 and Dece®be012, all of our derivatives were in a liability positi. The following tabl
sets forth the fair value of our liability derivagis:

March 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Liability Derivatives:
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges in acotsipayable, accrued expenses and other liabilities
Interest rate swaps $ 8,261 § 9,36¢
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7. Derivative Financial Instruments - Continued

The following table sets forth the effect of ouslkedlow hedges on AOCL and interest expense:

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2013 2012

Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedges:

Amount of unrealized gains recognized in AOCL on devatives (effective portion):
Interest rate swaps

$ 28C $ 1,104

Amount of (gains)/losses reclassified out of AOCLInto contractual interest expense (effective portion

Interest rate swaps $ 78t ¢ (33

8. Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp

Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partngrsklate to the ownership of Common Units by vasiondividuals and entities ott
than the Company. Net income attributable to notrodimg interests in the Operating Partnershic@nputed by applying the weigh
average percentage of Common Units not owned b timepany during the period, as a percent of the taimber of outstanding Comrmr
Units, to the Operating Partnerstiphet income for the period after deducting distitns on Preferred Units. When a noncontro
unitholder redeems a Common Unit for a share of @omStock or cash, the noncontrolling interesth@Operating Partnership are redt
and the Company's share in the Operating Partqeishicreased by the fair value of each secutith@time of redemption.

The following table sets forth noncontrolling irgsts in the Operating Partnership:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2013 2012
Beginning noncontrolling interests in the Operatitagtnership $ 124,86¢ $ 110,65!
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opiexg Partnership to fair value 23,80: 14,36¢
Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock (357) (63
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interdstthe Operating Partnership 581 827
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in theédating Partnership (1,589 (1,584

Total noncontrolling interests in the OperatingtRarship $ 14731 $ 124,20

The following table sets forth net income availatdecommon stockholders and transfers from norrotiittg interests in the Operati
Partnership:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
Net income available for common stockholders $ 12,34¢ $ 16,69
Increase in additional paid in capital from coni@ns of Common Units to Common Stock 351 63

Change from net income available for common stoltérs and transfers from noncontrolling interests $ 12,70 $ 16,75;
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8. Noncontrolling Interests - Continued
Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Affiliates

At March 31, 2013 , noncontrolling interests in solidated affiliates relates to our joint venturartper's 50.0%nterest in offici
properties located in Richmond, VA. Our joint vengtpartner is an unrelated third party.

9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument

The following summarizes the three levels of inghtst we use to measure fair value, as well asgisets, noncontrolling interests in
Operating Partnership and liabilities that we retpg at fair value using those levels of inputs.

Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identicabéssr liabilities.

Our Level 1 assets are investments in marketalderisies that we use to pay benefits under our quelified deferred compensat
plan. Our Level 1 noncontrolling interests in thpe@ating Partnership relate to the ownership of @om Units by various individuals a
entities other than the Company. Our Level 1 ligbis our non-qualified deferred compensation géation.

Level 2.0bservable inputs other than Level 1 prices, ssofuated prices for similar assets or liabilitiggpted prices in markets that
not active; or other inputs that are observableaor be corroborated by observable market dataufostantially the full term of the relai
assets or liabilities.

Our Level 2 asset is the fair value of certain of mortgages and notes receivable, which was etgthia/ the income approach utiliz
contractual cash flows and markesed interest rates to approximate the priceviioald be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants.

Our Level 2 liabilities include (1) the fair valeé our mortgages and notes payable, which was astiirby the income approach utiliz
contractual cash flows and markesed interest rates to approximate the priceviioald be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants and (2) interest rate swaps whosevédire is determined using the market standard odelbgy of netting the discounted fut
fixed cash receipts and the discounted expectéadblarcash payments. The variable cash paymemsrdfterest rate swaps are based o
expectation of future LIBOR interest rates (forwanatves) derived from observed market LIBOR interage curves. In addition, cre
valuation adjustments are incorporated in theviaiues to account for potential nonperformance, tisit were concluded to not be signific
inputs to the calculation for the periods presented

Level 3. Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlen@market activity and that are significant to fag value of the assets
liabilities.

Our Level 3 assets include (1) certain of our meges and notes receivable, which were estimatethdyncome approach utilizi
internal cash flow projections and market intemeges to estimate the price that would be paidniroalerly transaction between mai
participants, (2) our tax increment financing bomthjch is not routinely traded but whose fair valsaletermined by the income appra
utilizing contractual cash flows and marlegtsed interest rates to estimate the projectedngtiten value based on quoted bid/ask price
similar unrated municipal bonds, and (3) any resdate assets recorded at fair value on areounrring basis as a result of our quar
impairment analysis, which were valued using thiengeof definitive sales contracts or the sales amspn approach and substantiated
internal cash flow projections.

Our Level 3 liabilities include the fair value ofiocontingent consideration to acquire real estatets and financing obligations, wt
were estimated by the income approach to approrirtiat price that would be paid in an orderly tratisa between market participar
utilizing: (1) contractual cash flows; (2) markmdsed interest rates; and (3) a number of othemgs#ons including demand for spe
competition for customers, changes in market raatals, costs of operation and expected ownerghipgs.
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

The following tables set forth the assets, nonadiinig interests in the Operating Partnership aatilities that we measure at fair va
by level within the fair value hierarchy. We detémmthe level based on the lowest level of substarput used to determine fair value.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant
Identical Assets or Significant Unobservable
March 31, 2013 Liabilities Observable Inputs Inputs
Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair vadye $ 25,63¢ $ — 16,99C $ 8,64¢
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid
expenses and other assets) 3,52¢ 3,52¢ — —
Impaired real estate assets 9,00z — — 9,00z
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesaher assets) 14,32¢ — — 14,32¢
Total Assets $ 52,49 % 3,52¢ % 16,99C $ 31,97«
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnerstip $ 147,31 147,31 $ = =
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiyie $ 2,02450 $ — $ 202450 % —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxehses and other liabilities) 8,261 — 8,261 —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationg@tounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabilities) 3,52¢ 3,52¢ — —
Contingent consideration to acquire real estatetags accounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabilities) 37t — — 37t
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 23,98¢ — — 23,98¢
Total Liabilities $ 2,060,660 $ 352¢ $ 2,032,770 $ 24,36:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant
December 31, Identical Assets or Significant Unobservable
2012 Liabilities Observable Inputs Inputs
Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair vadye $ 24,72 $ — % 16,077 $ 8,64¢
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid
expenses and other assets) 3,35¢ 3,35¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesaher assets) 14,49¢ — — 14,49¢
Total Assets $ 42578 $ 3,35¢ $ 16,077 $ 23,14«
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp $ 124,86¢ $ 124,86¢ $ — % —
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiye $ 198736 $ — $ 198736 $ —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxehses and other liabilities) 9,36¢ — 9,36¢ —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationgatounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabilities) 3,35¢ 3,35¢ — —
Contingent consideration to acquire real estatetags accounts payable, accru
expenses and other liabilities) 563 — — 563
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 23,25: — — 23,25:
Total Liabilities $ 2,02390 $ 335¢ $ 199,73 §$ 23,81t
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

(1) Amounts recorded at historical cost on oan$blidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2013 andrblger 31, 2012 .

The following table sets forth the changes in oavél 3 asset and liability, which are recordedaatfalue on our Consolidated Bala
Sheets:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
Asset:

Tax Increment Financing Bond:

Beginning balance $ 14,49¢ $ 14,78¢
Principal repayment (562) —
Unrealized gains (in AOCL) 39C 287

Ending balance $ 1432 $ 15,07t

Liability:

Contingent Consideration to Acquire Real Estate Assts:

Beginning balance $ 565 $ =
Unrealized gains (in general and administrativeeesps) (18¢) —

Ending balance $ 3¢ % —

During 2007, we acquired a tax increment finandiognd associated with a parking garage developedsbyrhis bond amortizes
maturity in 2020 . The estimated fair value at Me8d, 2013 was $1.5 milliobelow the outstanding principal due on the bonthéfdiscour
rate used to fair value this bond was 100 basistpdiigher or lower, the fair value of the bond Vaomave been $0.5 million lower &0.5
million higher, respectively, as of March 31, 201@/e intend to hold this bond and have concluded we will not be required to sell tl
bond before recovery of the bond principal. Paynednihe principal and interest for the bond is gudeed by us. We have recorded no ¢
losses related to the bond during the three maerided March 31, 2013 and 201Phere is no legal right of offset with the lidtyil which we
report as a financing obligation, related to this increment financing bond.

The impaired real estate assets that were measutbd first quarter of 2013 at fair value and dedrnto be Level 3 assets were va
based primarily on markétased inputs and our assumptions about the u$e afstsets, as observable inputs were not availabiee absenc
of observable inputs, we estimate the fair valueeal estate using unobservable data such as éstirdsscount and capitalization rates.
also utilize local and national industry marketadsitich as comparable sales, sales contracts aralssto assist us in our estimation of
value. Significant increases or decreases in aryatian inputs in isolation would result in a sificantly lower or higher fair val
measurement.
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

The following table sets forth quantitative infortioa about the unobservable inputs of our LevesSets and liability, which are recort
at fair value on our Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Fair Value at Valuation Unobservable
March 31, 2013 Technique Input Rate/ Percentage
Assets:
Tax increment financing bond $ 14,32« Income approach Discount rate 10.4%
Impaired real estate assets $ 9,00z Income approach Capitalization rate 8.5%-9.5%
Discount rate 9.0%-10.0%
Liability:
Contingent consideration to acquire real estatetass $ 37¢ Income approach Payout percentage 50.0%

10. Share-based Payment

During the three months ended March 31, 2013 , naatgd 168,708tock options with an exercise price equal to lbsicg market pric
of a share of our Common Stock on the date of grim fair value of each option grant is estimatadthe date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, which resulted in eighted average grant date fair value per shafe@50 . During theéhree months end
March 31, 2013 , we also granted 79,080 sharesna&-based restricted stock and 65,486 shares aff teturnbased restricted stock w
weighted average grant date fair values per shia$e36.35 and $ 31.73 , respectively. We recordedkshased compensation expense
3.4 million and $ 2.4 million during the three mistended March 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectivelyMaitch 31, 2013 , there w&.z
million of total unrecognized stodkased compensation costs, which will be recognixed a weighted average remaining contractual tef
2.7 years.

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los

The following table sets forth the components of O

Three Months Ended March 31,

2013 2012

Tax increment financing bond:

Beginning balance $ (1,899 $ (2,309

Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond 39C 287

Ending balance (1,50¢) (2,027
Cash flow hedges:

Beginning balance (20,730) (3,425

Unrealized gains on cash flow hedges 28C 1,104

Amortization of cash flow hedges 78¢ (33)

Ending balance (9,662) (2,359
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (11170 $ (4,376

(1) Amounts reclassified out of AOCL into cormtitgal interest expense.
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12. Discontinued Operation:

The following table sets forth our operations whiefuired classification as discontinued operations

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
Rental and other revenues $ 34§ 5,47¢
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 10z 1,93¢
Depreciation and amortization 14¢ 1,53
Total operating expenses 251 3,471
Interest expense — 12t
Income from discontinued operations 94 1,88:
Impairments of real estate assets held for sale (71%) —
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations 1,24« 5,13¢
Total discontinued operations $ 62f  § 7,01¢
The following table sets forth the major classeassfets of our real estate and other assets,at@tfidn sale:
March 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Assets:
Land $ 65¢ $ 2,48
Buildings and tenant improvements 6,69( 23,10¢
Less-accumulated depreciation (2,997 (8,017
Net real estate assets 4,357 17,57:
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net 2€ 40¢
Deferred leasing costs, net 11 92¢
Prepaid expenses and other assets — 3C
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale $ 439 § 18,93¢

As of March 31, 2013 , real estate and other asseis held for sale included fivimdustrial properties in Atlanta, GA. As
December 31, 2012 , real estate and other assttd)eid for sale included two office propertieirando, FL and fivéndustrial propertie
in Atlanta, GA. All of these properties qualifiedrfdiscontinued operations in the first quarte2@13 .
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13. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation aiz and diluted earnings per share:

Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
Earnings per Common Share - basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 13,13¢ $ 11,31¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeis the Operating Partnership from continuingrapens (559) (483)
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling integeim consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (209) (184
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627)
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders 11,75: 10,02:
Income from discontinued operations 62E 7,01¢€
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intdeeim the Operating Partnership from discontinupelrations (28) (349
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 597 6,672
Net income available for common stockholders $ 12,34¢ $ 16,69
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Shareighted average shar@s (2) 81,02¢ 72,83¢
Earnings per Common Share - basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 01¢ $ 0.14
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 0.01 0.0¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 0.1t $ 0.2¢
Earnings per Common Share - diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 13,13¢ $ 11,31¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling integeim consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (209) (1849
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627)
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders before net (income) attributabledncontrolling interests in tt
Operating Partnership 12,30¢ 10,50¢
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon stockholders 62¢ 7,01¢

Net income available for common stockholders befaie(income) attributable to noncontrolling int&eein the Operating Partnersh$ ~ 12,93C  $  17,52!

Denominator:

Denominator for basic earnings per Common Sharéghiexl average shargeq (2) 81,02¢ 72,83¢t
Add:

Stock options using the treasury method 10¢ 132
Noncontrolling interests Common Units 3,72¢ 3,72¢
Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Shaadjusted weighted average shares and assumed siongé 1) 84,86: 76,69¢

Earnings per Common Share - diluted:

Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 01¢ $ 0.14
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 0.01 0.0¢
Net income available for common stockholders $ 01t  $ 0.2t

(1) There were 0.5 million and 0.6 million options datsling during the three months ended March 31320 2012 respectively, that were not incluc
in the computation of diluted earnings per shaabse the impact of including such options woulaive-dilutive.

(2) Includes all unvested restricted stock where divitteon such restricted stock are riorfeitable
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14. Segment Informatior

The following table summarizes the rental and otkeenues and net operating income, the primanysing propertylevel performanc
metric which is defined as rental and other revsriess rental property and other expenses, for regaairtable segment:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
Rental and Other Revenues(i)

Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 17,53t $ 14,90¢
Greenville, SC 3,22¢ 3,50z
Kansas City, MO 3,97( 3,60z
Memphis, TN 9,38: 9,25¢
Nashville, TN 14,07¢ 13,86:
Orlando, FL 2,22 2,15¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 6,891 5,07¢
Pittsburgh, PA 13,69: 9,08¢
Raleigh, NC 20,66¢ 19,77t
Richmond, VA 11,777 11,507
Tampa, FL 18,02¢ 17,13:
Total Office Segment 121,47: 109,86

Industrial:

Atlanta, GA 2,96¢ 2,941
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,12¢ 3,164
Total Industrial Segment 6,091 6,10t

Retail:
Kansas City, MO 9,46¢ 8,92
Total Retail Segment 9,46¢ 8,92
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 137,03 $ 124,89«
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

14. Segment Information - Continued

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
Net Operating Income: (1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 11,17¢ $ 9,72¢
Greenville, SC 1,88¢ 2,132
Kansas City, MO 2,56¢ 2,33
Memphis, TN 5,632 5,55k
Nashville, TN 9,69( 9,65
Orlando, FL 1,07¢ 1,06¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 4,35¢ 3,232
Pittsburgh, PA 7,42 4,28(
Raleigh, NC 14,63: 13,95¢
Richmond, VA 8,11¢ 7,88(
Tampa, FL 11,50:¢ 10,83t
Total Office Segment 78,05 70,64¢
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 2,18¢ 2,15¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 2,24¢ 2,28
Total Industrial Segment 4,432 4,44:
Retail:
Kansas City, MO 5,62: 5,53:
Total Retail Segment 5,62% 5,53:
Residential:
Raleigh, NC — (87)
Total Residential Segment — (87
Corporate and othez) (29 (22)
Total Net Operating Income 88,08¢ 80,51¢
Reconciliation to income from continuing operationsdefore disposition of condominiums and equity in&nings/(losses) of
unconsolidated affiliates:
Depreciation and amortization (42,149 (36,989
Impairments of real estate assets (415) —
General and administrative expenses (10,589 (9,679
Interest expense (23,86%) (24,67°)
Other income 1,61¢ 2,23(
Income from continuing operations before dispositia of condominiums and equity in earnings/(losses¥ o
unconsolidated affiliates $ 1269¢ § 114X

(1) Net of discontinued operatiol

(2) Negative NOI with no corresponding revenues reprssexpensed real estate taxes and other carrgstg associated with land held for developr
that is currently zoned for the respective prodyjge.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sire data)

15. Subsequent Event

On April 15, 2013, we sold five industrial propestin Atlanta, GA for a sale price of $4.5 milli¢after $0.1 million in closing credits
buyer for free rent) and expect to record a gaidisposition of discontinued operations of lessitfi@.1 million.

On April 17, 2013, our DLF | joint venture sold affice property to an unrelated third party fasade price of $6.0 millioand expects -
record a gain on disposition of discontinued openatof less than $0.1 million. We expect to redess than $0.1 million as our share of
gain through equity in earnings of unconsolidatéitiates.

On April 24, 2013 , we sold six industrial propestiand a land parcel in a single transaction iar#, GA for a sale price §&38.7

million (before $1.8 million in closing credits uyer for unfunded tenant improvements and afte® $illion in closing credits to buyer f
free rent) and expect to record a gain on dismusitif discontinued operations of $13.2 million .
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Unaudited and in thousands, except unit and pgidate)

Assets:
Real estate assets, at cost:
Land
Buildings and tenant improvements
Development in process
Land held for development

Less-accumulated depreciation
Net real estate assets

Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,923 $2848, respectively
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowan&8¥ and $182, respectively
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofwalace of $1,034 and $880, respectively
Investments in and advances to unconsolidate deaéfd
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdated amortization of $82,472 and $77,219, respelsti

Prepaid expenses and other assets, net of accechalaiprtization of $12,587 and $12,318,
respectively

Total Assets
Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnership Unitsand Equity:
Mortgages and notes payable
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiedil
Financing obligations
Total Liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable Operating Partnership Units:
Common Units, 3,722,945 and 3,733,016 outstandespectively

Series A Preferred Units (liquidation preferencégd®0 per unit), 29,077 units issued and
outstanding

Total Redeemable Operating Partnership Units
Equity:
Common Units:
General partner Common Units, 854,447 and 836,85 anding, respectively
Limited partner Common Units, 80,867,336 and 79,088 outstanding, respectively
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates
Total Equity

Total Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnersimits and Equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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March 31, December 31,
2013 2012

$ 380,93: % 371,73(
3,365,15. 3,281,36.
29,20¢ 21,19¢
122,82! 117,78
3,898,12 3,792,07.
(966,449) (939,55()
2,931,67 2,852,52.
4,39 18,93¢

12,25 13,86

14,79( 19,70:

25,061 23,07:

25,47: 25,47:

122,09¢ 116,58
65,10¢ 65,81
176,81t 169,09:
41,83( 44,45¢

$ 3,419,500 $ 3,349,522
$ 1,896,300 $ 1,859,16:
167,53( 172,02¢
29,25 29,35¢
2,093,08 2,060,541
147,31 124,86
29,071 29,071

176,39 153,94t

11,56: 11,42%
1,144,94. 1,131,48
(12,170 (12,62¢)

4,691 4,75:
1,150,02 1,135,03

$ 3,419,500 $ 3,349,522
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Rental and other revenues

Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Impairments of real estate assets
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Interest expense:
Contractual
Amortization of deferred financing costs

Financing obligations

Other income:
Interest and other income

Losses on debt extinguishment

HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per unit anspunt

Income from continuing operations before dispositio of condominiums and equity in earnings/(lossesf o

unconsolidated affiliates

Gains on for-sale residential condominiums

Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iaffis

Income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations:

Income from discontinued operations

Impairments of real estate assets held for sale

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations

Net income

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliates

Distributions on Preferred Units
Net income available for common unitholders

Earnings per Common Unit — basic:

Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders

Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders

Net income available for common unitholders

Weighted average Common Units outstanding — basic

Earnings per Common Unit — diluted:

Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders

Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders

Net income available for common unitholders

Weighted average Common Units outstanding — diluted

Distributions declared per Common Unit

Net income available for common unitholders:

Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders

Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders

Net income available for common unitholders

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
$ 137,03( $ 124,89:
48,96 44,31¢
42,14« 36,98:
41F =
10,55¢ 9,73¢
102,08: 91,03«
22,79¢ 23,85
94¢ 90z
121 (76)
23,86¢ 24,677
1,782 2,23(
(164) —
1,61¢ 2,23(
12,69¢ 11,41
— 65
382 (160)
13,08: 11,31¢
94 1,88:
(719) =
1,24¢ 5,13¢
62E 7,01¢
13,70° 18,33«
(209) (184
(627) (627)
$ 12,87% 17,52
$ 0.1¢ 0.14
0.01 0.0¢
$ 0.1f 0.2:
84,34t 76,15¢
$ 0.1¢ 0.14
0.01 0.0¢
$ 0.1¢ 0.2t
84,45! 76,287
$ 0.42¢ 0.42¢
$ 12,25: 10,50
62¢ 7,01¢
$ 12,877 17,52:
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
Comprehensive income:

Net income $ 13,700 $ 18,33¢
Other comprehensive income:

Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond 39C 287

Unrealized gains on cash flow hedges 28C 1,104

Amortization of cash flow hedges 78¢ 33
Total other comprehensive income 1,45¢ 1,35¢
Total comprehensive income $ 1516¢ $ 19,69:

Less-comprehensive (income) attributable to nonodirty interests (203%) (1849
Comprehensive income attributable to common urdkéis! $ 1496: $ 19,50¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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Balance at December 31, 2012
Issuances of Common Units, net
Distributions paid on Common Units
Distributions paid on Preferred Units

Share-based compensation expense

HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Capital

(Unaudited and in thousands, except unit amounts)

Common Units

Noncontrolling

Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates — —

Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair valoe
contributions/distributions from/to the GeneraltRar (229 (22,62%)

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéssim consolidated

affiliates
Comprehensive income:

Net income

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Balance at March 31, 2013

Balance at December 31, 2011
Issuances of Common Units, net
Distributions paid on Common Units
Distributions paid on Preferred Units

Share-based compensation expense

Distributions to noncontrolling interests in conidated affiliates — —

Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair valoe
contributions/distributions from/to the GeneraltRar (237) (13,499

Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéssi® consolidated

affiliates
Comprehensive income:

Net income

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Balance at March 31, 2012

General Limited Accumulated Interests in
Partners’ Partners’ Other Consolidated Total Partners’
Capital Capital Comprehensive Loss Affiliates Capital
$ 11,427 % 1,131,48  $ (12,62%) 4,75:  $ 1,135,03
55¢ 55,24¢ — — 55,80«
(35€) (35,319 == == (35,669
(6) (621) — — (627)
34 3,40¢ = = 3,44(
— (26%) (26%)
== == (22,85
2 (203) — 20z —
137 13,57( — — 13,70°
= = 1,45¢ = 1,45¢
15,16t
$ 11,56¢ $ 1,144,94: $ (11,170 4,691 $ 1,150,02
Common Units Noncontrolling
General Limited Accumulated Interests in
Partners’ Partners’ Other Consolidated Total Partners’
Capital Capital Comprehensive Loss Affiliates Capital
$ 9,57t $ 948,18 $ (5,739 4,646 $ 956,67+
26¢€ 26,37¢ — — 26,64+«
(329 (32,049 = = (32,379
(6) (621) — — (627)
24 2,39¢ = = 2,422
— (293 (293)
= = (13,63¢)
2 (182 — 184 —
182 18,15: — — 18,33+«
i = 1,35¢ — 1,35¢
19,69:
$ 9,58 $ 948,76:  $ (4,376 453¢ $ 958,50

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31,

2013 2012
Operating activities:
Net income $ 13,707 % 18,33«
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 42,29: 38,51t
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisitiolated intangible assets and liabilities (136) 6¢
Share-based compensation expense 3,44( 2,42;
Allowance for losses on accounts and accrued sirdiite rents receivable 42¢ 57¢
Amortization of deferred financing costs 94¢ 90z
Amortization of cash flow hedges 78¢ 33
Impairments of real estate assets 41k —
Impairments of real estate assets held for sale 713 —
Losses on debt extinguishment 164 —
Net gains on disposition of property (1,244 (5,139
Gains on for-sale residential condominiums — (65)
Equity in (earnings)/losses of unconsolidated iaffis (389) 16C
Changes in financing obligations (205) (339
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés 1,13¢ 1,381
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (1,479 2,47(
Prepaid expenses and other assets (2,39)) (4,449
Accrued straight-line rents receivable (5,78¢) (5,387)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheritlizdil (10,15%) (27,349
Net cash provided by operating activities 42,35 22,09:
Investing activities:
Investments in acquired real estate and relatesigible assets, net of cash acquired (88,337 —
Investments in development in process (4,979 —
Investments in tenant improvements and deferresirigaosts (18,009 (22,677)
Investments in building improvements (13,109 (8,487)
Net proceeds from disposition of real estate assets 14,97: 10,94:
Net proceeds from disposition of for-sale resid#r@dondominiums — 1,00¢
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated atfies 363 901
Repayments of mortgages and notes receivable — 1,481
Investments in and advances/repayments to/fromnsutidated affiliates (429) (2,199
Changes in restricted cash and other investingites 10,26: 5,12«
Net cash used in investing activities (99,259 (12,89¢)
Financing activities:
Distributions on Common Units (35,669 (32,37))
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (627)
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates (26E) (29))
Proceeds from the issuance of Common Units 59,01¢ 25,14
Costs paid for the issuance of Common Units (707) —
Repurchase of units related to tax withholdings (2,519 (2,74¢)
Borrowings on revolving credit facility 135,90( 61,00(
Repayments of revolving credit facility (61,400 (282,000
Borrowings on mortgages and notes payable — 225,00(
Repayments of mortgages and notes payable (37,219 (3,06%)

Additinne tn deferred financina rncte and ntheafirina activitiac (1 240 (2 3210



Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 55,28¢ (11,299

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents $ (1,619 $ (2,099

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31,

2013 2012
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents $ 1,619 $ (2,099
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gherio 13,867 11,152
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period $ 12,25  § 9,05z

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2013 2012

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 21,887 $ 25,97(

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéth&incing activities:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2013 2012
Unrealized gains on cash flow hedges $ 28C $ 1,10/
Changes in accrued capital expenditures 5,15¢ 97t
Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets 6,467 15,84:
Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing afehsing costs 4,87 3,32(
Unrealized gains on marketable securities of noalified deferred compensation plan 28¢ 334
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair value 22,44¢ 13,54¢
Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond 39C 287

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2013
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per uit data)
(Unaudited)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accatting Policies
Description of Business

Highwoods Properties, Inc., together with its cdiasded subsidiaries (the “Company”), is a fulltegrated, self-administered and self-
managed equity real estate investment trust (“REt&t provides leasing, management, developmenstauction and other custometatec
services for its properties and for third parti#de Company conducts virtually all of its activitithrough Highwoods Realty Limit
Partnership (the “Operating Partnership”). At Magdh 2013 , the Company and/or the Operating Pastiige wholly owned: 303 iiservice
office, industrial and retail properties, comprgsiB0.1 million square feet; 64&res of undeveloped land suitable for future dgwekent, @
which 566 acres are considered core assets; andffize development properties. In addition, we edrnterests ( 50.0% or less) in 31 in-
service office properties, a rental residentialadlepment property and ldcres of undeveloped land suitable for future dgelent, whic
includes a 12.5% interest in a 261,000 squaredfimte property directly owned by the Company (imatiuded in the Operating Partnerskip’
Consolidated Financial Statements).

The Company is the sole general partner of the &jpgr Partnership. At March 31, 201&he Company owned all of the Preferred L
and 81.7 million , or 95.7% , of the Common Unitstihe Operating Partnership. Limited partners,udilg twodirectors of the Compar
own the remaining 3.7 millio@ommon Units. In the event the Company issues sl@r€ommon Stock, the net proceeds of the issuare
contributed to the Operating Partnership in exchdiog additional Common Units. Generally, the OfiagaPartnership is required to rede
each Common Unit at the request of the holder tidior cash equal to the value of one share ofGbmpany’s Common Stock, $ 0.pal
value, based on the average of the market pricthéLOtrading days immediately preceding the notice dasuch redemption, provided t
the Company at its option may elect to acquire argh Common Units presented for redemption for casine share of Common Stock.
Common Units owned by the Company are not redeam&hlring the three months ended March 31, 20h& Company redeemdd,07:
Common Units for a like number of shares of Comrtock. As a result of this activity, the percentajeCommon Units owned by t
Company increased from 95.6% at December 31, 2098.7% at March 31, 2013 .

Common Stock Offerings

The Company has entered into equity sales agreemétft various financial institutions to offer aedll, from time to time, shares of
Common Stock by means of ordinary brokers' tranmagton the New York Stock Exchange or otherwismatket prices prevailing at t
time of sale, at prices related to prevailing magces or at negotiated prices or as otherwiseaagwith any of the institutions. During
three months ended March 31, 2013, the Compangds$,299,79%hares of Common Stock under these agreementsaaktasge gross sa
price of $ 35.95 per share and received net pra;edtbr sales commissions, of $ 46.0 million .

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are preparednformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States
America (“GAAP”). Our Consolidated Balance SheeDatember 31, 201®as retrospectively revised from previously repdraéenounts t
reflect in real estate and other assets, net, fogldale those properties which qualified as held dale during théhree months end
March 31, 2013 . Our Consolidated Statements obrive for the three months ended March 31, 2@&Pe retrospectively revised fr
previously reported amounts to reflect in discamdith operations the operations for those propetegsqualified for discontinued operations.

Our Consolidated Financial Statements include whoWned subsidiaries and those entities in whichhaee the controlling financi
interest. All intercompany transactions and accelmave been eliminated. At March 31, 2013 and Déeerdl, 2012 we had involveme
with, but are not the primary beneficiary in, anitgrthat we concluded to be a variable interesitgisee Note 3).
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per uit data)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accaiing Policies — Continued

The unaudited interim consolidated financial stanta and accompanying unaudited consolidated fiabimformation, in the opinion
management, contain all adjustments (including mbmexcurring accruals) necessary for a fair predent of our financial position, results
operations and cash flows. We have omitted certaias and other information from the interim coigaiked financial statements presente
this Quarterly Report as permitted by SEC rules regilations. These Consolidated Financial Statésr&hould be read in conjunction v
our 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statemémtaccordance with GAAP requires us to make edémand assumptions that af
the amounts reported in the consolidated finarst&tements and accompanying notes. Actual resulil differ from those estimates.

2. Real Estate Assets
Acquisitions

During the first quarter of 2013, we acquired:

» two office properties in Tampa, FL encompas$iig,000 square feet for a purchase price of $521Bm,

» two office properties in Greensboro, NC encomspap 195,000 square feet for a purchase price @853illion, anc

» five acres of development land in Memphis, TNdgurchase price of $4.8 million

We expensed $0.5 millioof acquisition costs (included in general and adstiative expenses) related to these acquisitibhe. asse
acquired and liabilities assumed were recordediatvhlue as determined by management based onmafmn available at the acquisit
date and on current assumptions as to future apesat
Dispositions

During the first quarter of 2013, we sold two offiproperties in Orlando, FL for a sale price of $luillion (before $0.8 milliorin
closing credits to buyer for unfunded tenant imgroents) and recorded a loss on disposition of dismeed operations of $0.3 million.

In connection with the disposition of an office pesty in Jackson, MS in the third quarter of 20&2, had the right to receive additio
cash consideration of up to $1.5 million upon thgs$action of a certain post-closing requiremdiie postelosing requirement was satisf
and the cash consideration was received durindfithiequarter of 2013. Accordingly, we recognizedl.% million in additional gain o
disposition of discontinued operations in the fisarter of 2013.

Impairments
During the first quarter of 2013, we recorded impeEnts of real estate assets of $0.4 million on itweustrial properties located
Atlanta, GA and recorded impairments of real estetgets held for sale of $0.7 million on fivelustrial properties in Atlanta, GA. The

impairments were due to a change in the assumeadgtiof future dispositions and leasing assumptiovisich reduced the future expec
cash flows from the properties.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per uit data)

3. Mortgages and Notes Receivable

The following table sets forth our mortgages antésoeceivable:

March 31, December 31,

2013 2012
Seller financing (first mortgages) $ 15,85: $ 15,85:
Less allowance — —
15,85 15,85:
Mortgage receivable 8,64¢ 8,64¢
Less allowance = =
8,64¢ 8,64¢
Promissory notes 1,40¢ 1,15
Less allowance (437) (182)
971 971
Mortgages and notes receivable, net $ 2547:  § 25,47

Our mortgages and notes receivable consist prigafikeller financing issued in conjunction withawisposition transactions in 2C
and acquisition financing provided to a third patyyer of adjacent development land in Nashvilld, T

The seller financing is evidenced by first mortgagecured by the assignment of rents and the yngreal estate assets. We eval
the collectability of the receivables by monitoritige leasing statistics and market fundamentathege assets. As of March 31, 2Q1Be
payments on both mortgages receivable were cuarahthere were no other indicators of impairmenthenreceivables. We may be requ
to take impairment charges in the future if anth®extent the underlying collateral diminishesétue.

During 2012, we provided an $8.6 millitman to a third party, which was used by such tpady to fund a portion of the purchase g
to acquire 77 acres of mixed-use development lajacant to our 68acre office development parcel in Nashville, TNtiadly, the loan i
scheduled to mature in December 2015 and bearsegttat 5.0% per year. The loan can be extendethdyhird party for up tdhree
additional years, subject to applicable increasdbe interest rate. We also agreed to loan suoth plarty approximately $8.4 millioto func
future infrastructure development on its 77 -aa@ealopment parcel. Both loans are or will be setilmgethe 77 acre development parcel.
of March 31, 2013, less than $0.1 millibas been funded to the third party for infrastreeevelopment. We concluded this arrangeme
be an interest in a variable interest entity. Hosvesince we do not have the power to direct mattleat most significantly impact t
activities of the entity, we do not qualify as themary beneficiary. Accordingly, the entity is nobnsolidated and the arrangemel
accounted for in mortgages and notes receivabtaiinConsolidated Balance Sheet at March 31, 20Q8r risk of loss with respect to t
arrangement is limited to the carrying value of th@rtgage receivable and the future infrastructieneelopment funding commitment.

The following table sets forth our notes receivatllewance, which relates only to promissory notes:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
Beginning notes receivable allowance $ 18z % 61
Recoveries/write-offs/other 25E 61
Total notes receivable allowance $§ 4371 § 122
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per uit data)

4. Investments in and Advances to Affiliates
Unconsolidated Affiliates
We have equity interests of up to 50.086various joint ventures with unrelated third pestthat are accounted for using the ec

method of accounting because we have the abiligxercise significant influence over their opergtand financing policies. The followi
table sets forth combined summarized financialrimi@tion for our unconsolidated affiliates:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
Income Statements:
Rental and other revenues $ 2247¢ $ 23,79
Expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 10,60¢ 10,80:
Depreciation and amortization 5,83¢ 6,254
Impairments of real estate assets 4,79( 7,18(
Interest expense 4,57¢ 5,66%
Total expenses 25,81: 29,89¢
Loss before disposition of properties (3,339 (6,107
Gains on disposition of properties 24 —
Net loss $ (3,30 $ (6,10))
Our share of:
Depreciation and amortization $ 197¢ $ 2,05¢
Impairments of real estate assets $ 1,02 $ 1,002
Interest expense $ 1,732 $ 1,95¢
Gains on disposition of depreciable properties $ 421 % —
Net income/(loss) $ 8 $ (78€)
Our share of net income/(loss) $ 8 $ (78€)
Adjustments for management and other fees 37t 62€
Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iaffils $ 38: $§ (160

During the first quarter of 2013, our DLF Il joiménture sold an office property to unrelated thuedties for a sale price $f.0.1 millior
(after $0.3 million in closing credits to buyer fioee rent) and recorded a gain on dispositionroperty of less tha$0.1 million. As our co
basis is different from the basis reflected at jbt venture level, we recorded $0.4 milliaf gain through equity in earnings
unconsolidated affiliates.

During the first quarter of 2013, our DLF | joinénture recorded impairments of real estate as$&#4.8 million on an office proper
located in Atlanta, GA and an office property lazhin Charlotte, NC. We recorded $1.0 millias our share of this impairment che
through equity in earnings of unconsolidated affds. These impairments were due to a changeeiagbumed timing of future dispositi
and leasing assumptions, which reduced the futtpeated cash flows from the properties.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per uit data)

5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities

The following table sets forth total intangible etssand acquisitiorelated below market lease liabilities, net of aosalated amortizatior

March 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Assets:
Deferred financing costs $ 21,42¢ $ 21,75¢
Less accumulated amortization (8,64¢) (7,862
12,77¢ 13,891
Deferred leasing costs (including lease incentare$ above market lease and in-place lease acquoisélated
intangible assets) 237,86: 224,55
Less accumulated amortization (73,829 (69,357)
164,03t 155,19°
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net $ 176,81t $ 169,09:
Liabilities (in accounts payable, accrued expensesd other liabilities):
Acquisition-related below market lease liabilities $ 37,53¢ $ 37,01¢
Less accumulated amortization (4,319 (3,389
$ 33,21¢ $ 33,63¢

The following table sets forth amortization of inggble assets and acquisition-related below mdeeeste liabilities:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
Amortization of deferred financing costs $ 94¢  $ 90z
Amortization of deferred leasing costs and acqoisitelated intangible assets (in depreciation @amartization) $ 835 $ 6,44(
Amortization of lease incentives (in rental andestrevenues) $ 38 % 348
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assgn rental and other revenues) $ 46€ 3 27C
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assg@n rental property and other expenses) $ 137 $ —
Amortization of acquisition-related below markedde liabilities (in rental and other revenues) $ (1,127 % (5449

38




Table of Contents
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per uit data)

5. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities - Continued

The following table sets forth scheduled future dimation of intangible assets and below markesédzbilities:

Amortization
of Deferred

Leasing Costs Amortization of Amortization
and Acquisition- Amortization Acquisition- of Acquisition-
Related Amortization of Acquisition- Related Related Below
Amortization Intangible Assets of Lease Related Intangible Assets  Market Lease
of Deferred (in Depreciation Incentives (in Intangible Assets (in Rental Liabilities (in
Financing and Rental and Other  (in Rental and Property and Rental and Other
Costs Amortization) Revenues) Other Revenues) Other Expenses) Revenues)
April 1 through December 31, 2013 $ 2,76¢ $ 24,308 $ 96 % 1,372 % 41€ % (3,087
2014 3,24¢ 28,12¢ 1,15¢ 1,537 558 (4,009
2015 2,614 22,84¢ 92¢€ 1,252 55¢ (3,74¢
2016 1,51¢ 18,48t 734 1,02: 558 (3,449
2017 1,22¢ 15,59 66C 90¢ 558 (3,209
Thereafter 1,40¢ 36,61° 2,10¢ 1,16¢ 1,64: (15,726
$ 12,77¢  $ 145,96¢ $ 6,54¢ $ 7,25¢ $ 427C  $ (33,219
Weighted average remaining amortization _
periods as of March 31, 2013 (in years) 5.C 6.€ 7.€ 54 7.1 9.€

The following table sets forth the intangible assetquired and below market lease liabilities agzlias a result of 201&cquisitior
activity:

Acquisition-
Acquisition- Acquisition- Related Below
Related Related Market Lease
Intangible Assets Intangible Assets Liabilities
(amortized in (amortized in (amortized in
Rental and Other Depreciation and Rental and Other
Revenues) Amortization) Revenues)
Amount recorded from acquisition activity $ 2,771 $ 11,56: $ (1,329
Weighted average remaining amortization periodydiars) 4. 4.8 9.3
6. Mortgages and Notes Payable
The following table sets forth our mortgages antkagayable:
March 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Secured indebtedness $ 547,15( $ 549,60°
Unsecured indebtedness 1,349,15! 1,309,55!
Total mortgages and notes payable $ 1896300 $ 1,859,16

At March 31, 2013 our secured mortgage loans were collateralizeteblyestate assets with an aggregate undepretiatddvalue of
967.3 million .
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6. Mortgages and Notes Payable - Continued

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit fiagiis scheduled to mature in July 20&6d includes an accordion feature that al
for an additional $ 75.0 millionf borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occurredhaue
an option to extend the maturity for an additiopadr. The interest rate at our current credit gatiis LIBOR plus 150 basis points and
annual facility fee is 35 basis points. The interage and facility fee are based on the highghefpublicly announced ratings from Moot
Investors Service or Standard & Poor's RatingsiGesv We use our revolving credit facility for warg capital purposes and for the short-
term funding of our development and acquisitionvitgtand, in certain instances, the repaymenttb&odebt. The continued ability to borr
under the revolving credit facility allows us toickly capitalize on strategic opportunities at ¢fterm interest rates. There wa8%5 millior
and $ 94.5 million outstanding under our revolvargdit facility at March 31, 2013 and April 19, Z1respectively. At botMarch 31, 201
and April 19, 2013 , we had $ 0.1 milli@f outstanding letters of credit, which reducesdkeilability on our revolving credit facility. Aa
result, the unused capacity of our revolving créaldlity at March 31, 2013 and April 19, 2013 wi377.4 million and $ 380.4 million
respectively.

During the first quarter of 2013, we prepaid thmaing $35.0 million balance on a $200.0 millibank term loan that was origine
scheduled to mature in February 2016 . We reco$@e2i million of loss on debt extinguishment relatedhis repayment.

We are currently in compliance with the debt covesand other requirements with respect to our.debt

7. Derivative Financial Instruments

We have six floating-to-fixed interest rate swapmtigh January 2019 with respect to an aggrega®225.0 million LIBORbase:
borrowings. These swaps effectively fix the undedyLIBOR rate at a weighted average of 1.678¥he counterparties under the swap:
major financial institutions. These swaps have kdesignated as and are being accounted for asfloashedges with changes in fair va
recorded in other comprehensive income each reyoperiod. No gain or loss was recognized relateloetdge ineffectiveness or to amol
excluded from effectiveness testing on our cashv fltedges during the three months ended March 313 20/e have no collater
requirements related to our interest rate swaps.

Amounts reported in accumulated other compreheriss® ("AOCL") related to derivatives will be resified to interest expense
interest payments are made on our variable-rate @ebing the period from April 1, 2013 through Mhr31, 2014, we estimate ths3.2
million will be reclassified to interest expense.

For the periods ending March 31, 2013 and Dece®be012, all of our derivatives were in a liability positi. The following tabl
sets forth the fair value of our liability derivagis:

March 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Liability Derivatives:
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges in acotsipayable, accrued expenses and other liabilities
Interest rate swaps $ 8,261 § 9,36¢
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7. Derivative Financial Instruments - Continued

The following table sets forth the effect of ouslkedlow hedges on AOCL and interest expense:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedges:
Amount of unrealized gains recognized in AOCL on devatives (effective portion):
Interest rate swaps $ 28C $ 1,10¢
Amount of (gains)/losses reclassified out of AOCLInto contractual interest expense (effective portion
Interest rate swaps $ 78t $ (39

8. Noncontrolling Interests
Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Affiliates

At March 31, 2013 , noncontrolling interests in solidated affiliates relates to our joint venturartper's 50.0%nterest in offici
properties located in Richmond, VA. Our joint vengtpartner is an unrelated third party.

9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument

The following summarizes the three levels of inghtst we use to measure fair value, as well asitsets and liabilities that we recogi
at fair value using those levels of inputs.

Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identicabéssr liabilities.

Our Level 1 assets are investments in marketalderisies that we use to pay benefits under our qualified deferred compensat
plan. Our Level 1 liability is our non-qualified féered compensation obligation.

Level 2.0bservable inputs other than Level 1 prices, ssafuated prices for similar assets or liabilitiggoted prices in markets that
not active; or other inputs that are observableaor be corroborated by observable market dataufostantially the full term of the relat
assets or liabilities.

Our Level 2 asset is the fair value of certain of mortgages and notes receivable, which was etgthiay the income approach utiliz
contractual cash flows and mark®tsed interest rates to approximate the pricevioatd be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants.

Our Level 2 liabilities include (1) the fair valeé our mortgages and notes payable, which was attiirby the income approach utiliz
contractual cash flows and mark®tsed interest rates to approximate the pricevioatld be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants and (2) interest rate swaps whosevédire is determined using the market standard odefogy of netting the discounted fut
fixed cash receipts and the discounted expectddblarcash payments. The variable cash paymersrahterest rate swaps are based o
expectation of future LIBOR interest rates (forwanakves) derived from observed market LIBOR intemase curves. In addition, cre
valuation adjustments are incorporated in thevfalues to account for potential nonperformance, tisk were concluded to not be signific
inputs to the calculation for the periods presented

Level 3. Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlen@market activity and that are significant to fag value of the assets
liabilities.
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

Our Level 3 assets include (1) certain of our megs and notes receivable, which were estimatethdyncome approach utilizi
internal cash flow projections and market intemeges to estimate the price that would be paidniroalerly transaction between mai
participants, (2) our tax increment financing bowmthjch is not routinely traded but whose fair valsaletermined by the income appra
utilizing contractual cash flows and marlegtsed interest rates to estimate the projectedngtiten value based on quoted bid/ask price
similar unrated municipal bonds, and (3) any resdate assets recorded at fair value on areouorring basis as a result of our quar
impairment analysis, which were valued using thiengeof definitive sales contracts or the sales amspn approach and substantiated
internal cash flow projections.

Our Level 3 liabilities include the fair value ofiocontingent consideration to acquire real estatets and financing obligations, wt
were estimated by the income approach to approgirte price that would be paid in an orderly tratisa between market participar
utilizing: (1) contractual cash flows; (2) markeidedinterest rates; and (3) a number of other assumgptiocluding demand for spa
competition for customers, changes in market reatals, costs of operation and expected ownerghripgs.

The following tables set forth the assets and lités that we measure at fair value by level witttie fair value hierarchy. We deterrr
the level based on the lowest level of substaritipat used to determine fair value.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant Significant
Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
March 31, 2013 or Liabilities Inputs Inputs

Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair vadye $ 25,63¢ $ — % 16,99 $ 8,64¢
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid

expenses and other assets) 3,52¢ 3,52¢ — —
Impaired real estate assets 9,00z — — 9,00z
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesaiher assets) 14,32¢ — — 14,32¢

Total Assets $ 52,49 % 3,52¢ % 16,99C $ 31,97«
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiye $ 202450 $ — $ 202450 % —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxehses and other liabilities) 8,261 — 8,261 —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationg@tounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabilities) 3,52¢ 3,52¢ — —
Contingent consideration to acquire real estatetags accounts payable, accru

expenses and other liabilities) 37t — — 37t
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 23,98¢ — — 23,98¢

Total Liabilities $ 2,060,660 $ 352¢ $ 2,032,777 $ 24,36
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant Significant
December 31, Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
2012 or Liabilities Inputs Inputs
Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair vadye $ 24,72 $ — 16,077 $ 8,64¢
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid
expenses and other assets) 3,35¢ 3,35¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesaher assets) 14,49¢ — — 14,49¢
Total Assets $ 4257 $ 3,35¢ % 16,077 $ 23,14
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiyie $ 1,987,360 $ — $ 1987360 $ —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxehses and other liabilities) 9,36¢ — 9,36¢ —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationgatounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabilities) 3,35¢ 3,35¢ — —
Contingent consideration to acquire real estatetags accounts payable, accrued
expenses and other liabilities) 56S — — 568
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 23,25 — — 23,25:
Total Liabilities $ 2,023,990 $% 335¢ $ 1,996,73 % 23,81t
(1) Amounts recorded at historical cost on oan$blidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2013 andrblger 31, 2012 .
The following table sets forth the changes in oavél 3 asset and liability, which are recordedaat ¥alue on our Consolidated Bala
Sheets:
Three Months Ended
March 31,
2013 2012
Asset:

Tax Increment Financing Bond:

Beginning balance $ 14,49¢ $ 14,78¢
Principal repayment (562) —
Unrealized gains (in AOCL) 39C 287

Ending balance $ 1432 $ 15,07

Liability:

Contingent Consideration to Acquire Real Estate Asss:

Beginning balance $ 56 % —
Unrealized gains (in general and administrativeeesps) (18¢) —

Ending balance $ 37t § —
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9. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

During 2007, we acquired a tax increment finandiognd associated with a parking garage developedsbyrhis bond amortizes
maturity in 2020 . The estimated fair value at Ma8d, 2013 was $1.5 milliobelow the outstanding principal due on the bonthéfdiscour
rate used to fair value this bond was 100 basistpdiigher or lower, the fair value of the bond Wonave been $0.5 million lower &0.5
million higher, respectively, as of March 31, 201@/e intend to hold this bond and have concluded we will not be required to sell tl
bond before recovery of the bond principal. Paynednihe principal and interest for the bond is gudeed by us. We have recorded no ¢
losses related to the bond during the three maerided March 31, 2013 and 201Phere is no legal right of offset with the lidtyil which we
report as a financing obligation, related to this increment financing bond.

The impaired real estate assets that were measutbd first quarter of 2013 at fair value and dednto be Level 3 assets were va
based primarily on markétased inputs and our assumptions about the u$e afssets, as observable inputs were not availabiee absenc
of observable inputs, we estimate the fair valueeal estate using unobservable data such as éstirdsscount and capitalization rates.
also utilize local and national industry marketadsitich as comparable sales, sales contracts aralssgto assist us in our estimation of
value. Significant increases or decreases in aryatian inputs in isolation would result in a sificantly lower or higher fair val
measurement.

The following table sets forth quantitative infortioa about the unobservable inputs of our LevesSets and liability, which are recort
at fair value on our Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Fair Value at Valuation Unobservable
March 31, 2013 Technique Input Rate/ Percentage
Assets:
Tax increment financing bond $ 14,32¢ Income approach Discount rate 10.4%
Impaired real estate assets $ 9,00z Income approach Capitalization rate 8.5%-9.5%
Discount rate 9.0%-10.0%
Liability:
Contingent consideration to acquire real estatetas$ 37¢ Income approach Payout percentage 50.0%
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10. Share-based Payment

During the three months ended March 31, 2013 Chmpany granted 168,7G@ock options with an exercise price equal to tlsiac
market price of a share of its Common Stock ondéite of grant. The fair value of each option giargstimated on the date of grant using
Black-Scholes option pricing model, which resulbedh weighted average grant date fair value peresbg$ 6.50 . During théhree month
ended March 31, 2013 , the Company also granted8@9shares of time-based restricted stock and 65s4@res of total returpase:
restricted stock with weighted average grant date falues per share of $ 36.35 and $ 31.73 , otispdy. We recorded stochase!
compensation expense of $ 3.4 million and $ 2.4ionilduring the three months ended March 31, 20482012 , respectively. Aflarch 31
2013 , there was $ 7.2 million of total unrecogdiz#ockbased compensation costs, which will be recognest a weighted avera
remaining contractual term of 2.7 years.

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los

The following table sets forth the components of O

Three Months Ended March 31,

2013 2012

Tax increment financing bond:

Beginning balance $ (1,899 $ (2,309

Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond 39C 287

Ending balance (1,508 (2,029
Cash flow hedges:

Beginning balance (20,730) (3,425

Unrealized gains on cash flow hedges 28C 1,10¢

Amortization of cash flow hedges 78¢€ 33

Ending balance (9,662) (2,359
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (11170 $ (4,37¢)

(1) Amounts reclassified out of AOCL into comtingal interest expense.
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12. Discontinued Operation:

The following table sets forth our operations whiefguired classification as discontinued operations

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
Rental and other revenues $ 34§ 5,47¢
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 10z 1,93¢
Depreciation and amortization 14¢ 1,53
Total operating expenses 251 3,471
Interest expense — 12t
Income from discontinued operations 94 1,88:
Impairments of real estate assets held for sale (71%) —
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations 1,24« 5,13¢
Total discontinued operations $ 62f  § 7,01¢
The following table sets forth the major classeassfets of our real estate and other assets,ateétidn sale:
March 31, December 31,
2013 2012
Assets:
Land $ 65¢ $ 2,48
Buildings and tenant improvements 6,69( 23,10¢
Less-accumulated depreciation (2,997 (8,017
Net real estate assets 4,357 17,57:
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net 2€ 40¢
Deferred leasing costs, net 11 92¢
Prepaid expenses and other assets — 3C
Real estate and other assets, net, held for sale $ 439 § 18,93¢

As of March 31, 2013 , real estate and other asseis held for sale included fivimdustrial properties in Atlanta, GA. As
December 31, 2012 , real estate and other assttd)eid for sale included two office propertieirando, FL and fivéndustrial propertie
in Atlanta, GA. All of these properties qualifiedrfdiscontinued operations in the first quarte2@13 .
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13. Earnings Per Unit

The following table sets forth the computation abiz and diluted earnings per unit:

Three Months Ended March 31

2013 2012
Earnings per Common Unit - basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 13,08: $ 11,31¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeis consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (203) (189
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (627)
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders 12,25: 10,50
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders 62¢ 7,01¢€
Net income available for common unitholders $ 12877 $ 17,52
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Unit ighted average units) (2) 84,34¢ 76,15¢
Earnings per Common Unit - basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 01¢ % 0.14
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders 0.01 0.0¢
Net income available for common unitholders $ 0.1t % 0.2t
Earnings per Common Unit - diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 13,08: $ 11,31¢
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeis consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (203) (1849
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (627)
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders 12,25: 10,50°
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders 62¢ 7,01¢
Net income available for common unitholders $ 1287 $ 17,52
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Unit giveid average units) (2) 84,34t 76,15¢
Add:
Stock options using the treasury method 10€ 132
Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Uradjusted weighted average units and assumed coonve(s 84,45: 76,281
Earnings per Common Unit - diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 01¢ $ 0.14
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders 0.01 0.0¢
Net income available for common unitholders $ 01t  $ 0.2t

(1) There were 0.5 million and 0.6 million optiomststanding during the three months ended Mar¢i2@13 and 2012respectively, that were not incluc
in the computation of diluted earnings per unitéhese the impact of including such options wouldbg-dilutive.

(2) Includes all unvested restricted stock whévadnds on such restricted stock are rfiorfeitable
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14. Segment Informatior

The following table summarizes the rental and otkeenues and net operating income, the primanysing propertylevel performanc
metric which is defined as rental and other reveness rental property and other expenses, for egittable segment:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
Rental and Other Revenues(i)

Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 17,53 $ 14,90¢
Greenville, SC 3,22¢ 3,502
Kansas City, MO 3,97( 3,60z
Memphis, TN 9,38: 9,25¢
Nashville, TN 14,07¢ 13,86:
Orlando, FL 2,22 2,15¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 6,891 5,07¢
Pittsburgh, PA 13,69: 9,08¢
Raleigh, NC 20,66¢ 19,77¢
Richmond, VA 11,777 11,507
Tampa, FL 18,02¢ 17,13:
Total Office Segment 121,47: 109,86

Industrial:

Atlanta, GA 2,96¢ 2,941
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,12: 3,16¢
Total Industrial Segment 6,091 6,10t

Retail:
Kansas City, MO 9,46¢ 8,92:
Total Retail Segment 9,46¢ 8,92
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 137,03  § 124,89
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14. Segment Information - Continued

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
Net Operating Income: (1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 11,167 $ 9,73t
Greenville, SC 1,88¢ 2,13¢
Kansas City, MO 2,56 2,33¢
Memphis, TN 5,63( 5,55¢
Nashville, TN 9,68 9,65¢
Orlando, FL 1,07¢ 1,06t
Piedmont Triad, NC 4,35k 3,23¢
Pittsburgh, PA 7,421 4,28¢
Raleigh, NC 14,627 13,97(
Richmond, VA 8,11¢ 7,88¢
Tampa, FL 11,50( 10,84:
Total Office Segment 78,03 70,70
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 2,18¢ 2,15¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 2,24 2,28¢
Total Industrial Segment 4,43( 4,44
Retail:
Kansas City, MO 5,621 5,537
Total Retail Segment 5,621 5,537
Residential:
Raleigh, NC — (87)
Total Residential Segment — (87
Corporate and othez) (29 (22)
Total Net Operating Income 88,06: 80,57¢
Reconciliation to income from continuing operationsdefore disposition of condominiums and equity in&nings/(losses) of
unconsolidated affiliates:
Depreciation and amortization (42,149 (36,989
Impairments of real estate assets (415) —
General and administrative expenses (10,55¢) (9,735
Interest expense (23,86%) (24,67°)
Other income 1,61¢ 2,23(
Income from continuing operations before dispositia of condominiums and equity in earnings/(losses¥ o
unconsolidated affiliates $ 1269¢ § 114X

(1) Net of discontinued operatiol

(2) Negative NOI with no corresponding revenues reprssexpensed real estate taxes and other carrgstg associated with land held for developr
that is currently zoned for the respective prodyjge.
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15. Subsequent Event

On April 15, 2013, we sold five industrial propestin Atlanta, GA for a sale price of $4.5 milli¢after $0.1 millionin closing credits t
buyer for free rent) and expect to record a gaidisposition of discontinued operations of lessitfi@.1 million.

On April 17, 2013, our DLF | joint venture sold affice property to an unrelated third party fasade price of $6.0 millioand expects -
record a gain on disposition of discontinued openatof less than $0.1 million. We expect to redess than $0.1 million as our share of
gain through equity in earnings of unconsolidatéitiates.

On April 24, 2013 , we sold six industrial propestiand a land parcel in a single transaction iar#, GA for a sale price §&38.7

million (before $1.8 million in closing credits uyer for unfunded tenant improvements and afte® $illion in closing credits to buyer f
free rent) and expect to record a gain on dismusitif discontinued operations of $13.2 million .
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The Company is a fully integrated, self-administesand selfmanaged equity REIT that provides leasing, managgnaevelopmen
construction and other custometated services for our properties and for thiadtips. The Company conducts virtually all of itgities
through the Operating Partnership. The OperatingnPeship is managed by the Company, its sole gémartner. At March 31, 2013we
wholly owned: 303 in-service office, industrial anetail properties, comprising 30.1 million squdeet; 649acres of undeveloped la
suitable for future development, of which 566 a@ss considered core assets; and éffice development properties. In addition, we od
interests ( 50.0% or less) in 31 in-service officeperties, a rental residential development pitypend 11acres of undeveloped land suite
for future development, which includes a 12.5%riesein a 261,008quare foot office property directly owned by thengpany (not include
in the Operating Partnership’Consolidated Financial Statements). We are basedaleigh, North Carolina, and our properties
development land are located in Florida, Georgissbluri, North Carolina, Pennsylvania, South CagliTennessee and Virginia. Additic
information about us can be found on our websitevatv.highwoods.com Information on our website is not part of thisa@erly Report.

You should read the following discussion and analys conjunction with the accompanying Consolidaténancial Statements ¢
related notes contained elsewhere in this Quarkelyort.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the information in this Quarterly Reportymeontain forwardeoking statements. Such statements include, iticpédar,
statements about our plans, strategies and praspader this section. You can identify forward-loak statements by our use of forward-
looking terminology such as “may,” “will,” “expeét;anticipate,” “estimate,” “continue’dr other similar words. Although we believe that
plans, intentions and expectations reflected isumgested by such forwaloleking statements are reasonable, we cannot agsuréhat ou
plans, intentions or expectations will be achievafthen considering such forwaldeking statements, you should keep in mind thiofdhg
important factors that could cause our actual tegaldiffer materially from those contained in doyward-looking statement:

” u ” u

» the financial condition of our customers could derate

* we may not be able to lease or release secondajmmespace, defined as previously occupied sgatebecomes available for lee
quickly or on as favorable terms as old leases;

* we may not be able to lease our newly construatéldibgs as quickly or on as favorable terms agipéilly anticipatec

e« we may not be able to complete development, aderisireinvestment, disposition or joint venturejpcts as quickly or on
favorable terms as anticipated,;

» development activity by our competitors in our &Rrig markets could result in an excessive supplyftite, industrial and ret:
properties relative to customer demand;

e our markets may suffer declines in economic grc
e unanticipated increases in interest rates coullct@se our debt service co
e unanticipated increases in operating expenses cagdtively impact our operating rest

e we may not be able to meet our liquidity requiretaesr obtain capital on favorable terms to fund warking capital needs a
growth initiatives or to repay or refinance outstisng debt upon maturity; and

» the Company could lose key executive offic
This list of risks and uncertainties, however, @ imtended to be exhaustive. You should also vevhe other cautionary statements
make in “ltem 1A. Business — Risk Factors” settdr our 2012 Annual Report on Form KO-Given these uncertainties, you should

place undue reliance on forwal@bking statements. We undertake no obligation ubliply release the results of any revisions tost
forward-looking statements to reflect any futuremté or circumstances or to reflect the occurrefiecsmanticipated events.
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Executive Summary
Our Strategic Plan focuses on:
« owning highguality, differentiated real estate assets in #&eikfill business districts in our core mark

e improving the operating results of our existinggedies through concentrated leasing, asset maragepost control and custor
service efforts;

» developing and acquiring office properties in kefjlli business districts that improve the overalbtity of our portfolio and gener:
attractive returns over the long-term for our stuamllers;

» selectively disposing of properties no longer cdesed to be core assets primarily due to locatge, quality and overall strate
fit; and

* maintaining a conservative, flexible balance shett ample liquidity to meet our funding needs ayndwth prospect

While we own and operate a limited number of indaktretail and residential properties, our op@tresults depend heavily
successfully leasing and operating our office prige Economic growth and employment levels in cane markets are and will continue
be important determinative factors in predicting future operating results.

The key components affecting our rental and otkgemues are average occupancy, rental rates, levegst recovery income, ni
developments placed in service, acquisitions asgaditions. Average occupancy generally increasesgl times of improving econon
growth, as our ability to lease space outpacesnges that occur upon the expirations of existiegsks. Average occupancy gene
declines during times of slower economic growth,emwmew vacancies tend to outpace our ability tedespace. Asset acquisitic
dispositions and new developments placed in sediteetly impact our rental revenues and could icbmaur average occupancy, depen
upon the occupancy rate of the properties thahegeired, sold or placed in service. A further aador of the predictability of future reveni
is the expected lease expirations of our portfdli®a result, in addition to seeking to increaseaMerage occupancy by leasing current ve
space, we also must concentrate our leasing effortsenewing leases on expiring spacFor more information regarding our le
expirations, s ee "ltem 2. Properties - Lease Etipins" in our 2012 Annual Report. Our occupancglided from 90.9%at December 3
2012 to 90.6%at March 31, 2013. Due to the scheduled expiratiates this year of large customers in Tampa, Fil Atlanta, GA, we expe
average occupancy to be approximately 90.0% throwtgthe rest of 2013.

Whether or not our rental revenue tracks averagapgancy proportionally depends upon whether remtieuinew leases signed are hig
or lower than the rents under the previous leasesualized rental revenues from second generaéiasds signed during any particular
are generally less than 15% of our total annuahiaevenues. The following table sets forth infation regarding second generation le:
which we define as space previously occupied undeownership that becomes available for leaseguised vacant space, that were sic
during the first quarter of 2013:

Office Industrial Retail
New Renewal New Renewal New Renewal
Leased space (in rentable square feet) 293,37( 501,83t 89,47 264,09! 10,51¢ 12,20:
Square foot weighted average term (in years) 7.7 5.2 4.8 3.€ 7.2 2.€
Annual GAAP rents (per square foqt) $ 20.6¢ $ 20.7¢ % 43 % 381 $ 533t % 21.6:
Tenant improvements (per square foot) $ 2391 $ 1058 $ 256 % 118§ 51.8¢8 $ 7.61
Leasing commissions (per square foot) $ 797 $ 33t % 08z $ 032 $% 149 $ =
Rent concessions (per square foot) $ 73: % 198 % 11z % 0.5¢ $ — % 1.3¢

(1) Amounts net of free rent concessic
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Annual GAAP rents for new and renewal leases coathimet of free rent concessions, under officeysivial and retail leases wi
$20.73 per square foot, or 0.1% higher, $3.95 peae foot, or 11.6% lower and $36.31 per squasg fr 35.4%higher, respectively, thi
under previous leases.

We strive to maintain a diverse, stable and cretifay customer base. We have an internal guidelimereby customers that account
more than 3% of our revenues are periodically reete with the Company's Board of Directors. Curgntio customer accounts for m
than 3% of our revenues other than the Federal @owent , which accounted for 6.78&% our revenues on an annualized basis,
March 31, 2013 .

Our expenses primarily consist of rental propentpemses, depreciation and amortization, general ahdinistrative expenses ¢
interest expense. From time to time, expensesiatdode impairments of real estate assets. Rentglgoty expenses are expenses asso!
with our ownership and operation of rental progartand include expenses that vary somewhat propatély to occupancy levels, suct
common area maintenance and utilities, and expehaeslo not vary based on occupancy, such as gyojees and insurance. Deprecia
and amortization is a norash expense associated with the ownership ofpregerty and generally remains relatively consiseath yea
unless we buy, place in service or sell assetgesive depreciate our properties and related bgjldind tenant improvement assets
straightline basis over a fixed life. General and admiaibfe expenses, net of amounts capitalized, copsistarily of management a
employee salaries and other personnel costs, @igpoverhead and long-term incentive compensation.

We intend to maintain a conservative and flexibddahce sheet that allows us to capitalize on falerdevelopment and acquisit
opportunities as they arise. We anticipate comnmmgnap to $200.0 milliorof new development in 2013. Any such projects waubd be
placed in service until 2014 or beyond. We alsacgrgte acquiring up to $325.0 million of new projees and selling up to $175.0 milliari
non-core properties in 2013. We generally seek to aecuid develop assets that are consistent witlstrategic Plan, improve the aver
quality of our overall portfolio and deliver congint and sustainable value for our stockholders tdwe longterm. Whether or not an as
acquisition or new development results in highargb@are net income or FFO in any given period ddpempon a number of factors, includ
whether the capitalization rate using projected GAdet operating income for any such period excéledsactual cost of capital usec
finance the acquisition. We generally intend tovgtbhe Company on a leverageutral basis by maintaining a leverage ratio,rafias th
percentage of mortgages and notes payable andhoditsy) preferred stock to the undepreciated bodkevaf our assets, of 488%. As 0
March 31, 2013, this ratio was 43.9% . Forwardcking information regarding 201&perating performance contained below under "Rest
Operations" excludes the impact of any potentigLigitions or dispositions.

Results of Operations
Three Months Ended March 31, 2013 and 2012
Rental and Other Revenues

Rental and other revenues from continuing operatiware $12.1 million , or 9.7% , higher in the ffiguarter of 201&s compared
2012primarily due to recent acquisitions, which acceuaifor $11.3 million of the increase, developmenaiperties recently placed in ser
and higher same property revenues of $0.3 mill®erme property revenues were higher in the firsttquaf 2013 as compared #91:
primarily due to an increase in average occupan®0t4% in the first quarter of 2013 from 89.8%he first quarter of 2012partly offset by
a decrease in annualized GAAP rent per occupiedrsdoot to $19.35 in the first quarter of 20131fr$$19.45 in the first quarter of 20aAc
lower net termination fees and cost recovery incoie expect rental and other revenues for the meteaiof 2013 to increase oved1:z
primarily due to the full year contribution of agsjtions closed in 2012, partly offset by slightlywer average occupancy in our si
property portfolio and lower net termination fees.

Operating Expenses

Rental property and other expenses were $4.6 milliar 10.3% , higher in the first quarter of 2G3compared to 204&imarily due t
recent acquisitions, which accounted for $4.0 onillof the increase, and higher same property dpgraxpenses of $0.6 million. Sa
property operating expenses were higher in thé duarter of 2013 as compared to 2@tRnarily due to higher contract services, insus
premiums and utilities, partly offset by lower restate taxes and repairs and maintenance. Wetengoeal property and other expenses
the remainder of 2013 to increase over 2@fitharily due to the full year contribution of adsjtions closed in 2012 and continuing sli
increases in same property operating expenses.

Operating margin, defined as rental and other neggress rental property and other expenses exgressa percentage of rental
other revenues, was lower at 64.3% in the firstrignaof 2013 , as compared to 64.5% in the firsartpr of 2012 Operating margin
expected to remain relatively consistent for theamder of 2013 as compared to 2012 .

Depreciation and amortization was $5.2 million 14r0% , higher in the first quarter of 2013 as paned to 2012lmost entirely due
recent acquisitions. We expect depreciation andrémation for the remainder of 2013 to increaserad®@12 primarily due to the full yei
contribution of acquisitions closed in 2012.
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We recorded impairments of real estate assetsfheladse of $0.4 million in the first quarter of 2Ddelated to two industrial propert
located in Atlanta, GA, which resulted from a charig the assumed timing of future dispositions Bea$ing assumptions. We recordec
such impairments in the first quarter of 2Q1ghpairments can arise from a number of factocspedingly, there can be no assurances th
will not be required to record additional impairrheharges in the future.

General and administrative expenses were $0.9omillior 9.4% , higher in the first quarter of 2@&3compared to 20J@#imarily due tc
higher acquisition costs and higher Iaegm equity incentive compensation recognized &tain employees who met or are approachin
age and service eligibility requirements under retirement plan in the first quarter of 2013. Ldegm equity incentive compensation awi
are typically issued during the first quarter oflegear. We expect general and administrative esgeefor the remainder of 2013 decreas
when compared with 2012 primarily due to lower $tterm incentive compensation and acquisition ¢gxsigtly offset by higher salaries.

I nterest Expense

Interest expense was $0.8 million , or 3.3% , loimethe first quarter of 2013 as compared to 2pdtharily due to lower average inter
rates, lower average debt balances and higheratiapd interest, partly offset by higher financiagligation interest expense. We exj
interest expense for the remainder of 2013 to dserevhen compared with 2012 for similar reasorstaded above.
Other Income

Other income was $0.6 million , or 27.4% , lowette first quarter of 2013 as compared to 2pfitharily due to a decrease in inte
income on notes receivable resulting from the repayt in 2012 of a secured loan we made in 201utdd F | joint venture and a loss
debt extinguishment. We expect other income forémeainder of 2013 to remain consistent as comparéd12 .
Equity in Earnings/(Losses) of Unconsolidated Affiliates

Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iaffiis was $0.6 million higher in the first quanér2013 as compared to 20h&marily
due to our share of a gain on disposition of arcefproperty in our DLF Il joint venture of $0.4 lifon in the first quarter of 2013. In eact
the first quarters of 2013 and 2012, we recordedshare of impairments of real estate assets 6f $illion on certain office properties in ¢
DLF | joint venture, both of which resulted fronthange in the assumed timing of future dispositam leasing assumptions.
I mpairments of Real Estate Assets Held for Sale

We recorded impairments of real estate assetsfoekhle of $0.7 million in the first quarter of Z®related to five industrial propert
located in Atlanta, GA requiring discontinued opienas presentation which resulted from a changehm assumed timing of futt
dispositions and leasing assumptions. We recordeslioh impairments in the first quarter of 2012p&inments can arise from a numbe
factors; accordingly, there can be no assuranegsw will not be required to record additional aiyment charges in the future.

Net Gains on Disposition of Discontinued Operations

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operatioese $3.9 million lower in the first quarter of ZDas compared to 20Hie to the n
effect of our disposition activity.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

Our goal is to maintain a conservative and flexiéance sheet with access to multiple sourcesbf @nd equity capital and suffici
availability under our revolving credit facility. 8/generally use rents received from customers d four operating expenses, recur
capital expenditures and distributions. To fundpanty acquisitions, development activity or builglinenovations and repay debt u
maturity, we may use current cash balances, ssditgsobtain new debt and/or issue equity. Our deherally consists of mortgage d
unsecured debt securities, bank term loans andworgs under our revolving credit facility.
Statements of Cash Flows

We report and analyze our cash flows based on tipgractivities, investing activities and financiagtivities. The following table s¢

forth the changes in the Company’s cash flows (Bausands):

Three Months Ended March 31,

2013 2012 Change
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities $ 42,11¢ $ 22,05( $ 20,06¢
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (99,259 (12,89¢) (86,35¢)
Net Cash Provided By/(Used In) Financing Activities 55,52: (8,127) 63,64¢
Total Cash Flows $ (1,619 $ 1,021 $ (2,640

In calculating net cash related to operating aibgisj depreciation and amortization, which are oash expenses, are added back t
income. As a result, we have historically generagubsitive amount of cash from operating actisitierom period to period, cash flow fr
operations depends primarily upon changes in otirim@me, as discussed more fully above under “Resaf Operations,’changes i
receivables and payables, and net additions oredses in our overall portfolio, which affect thecamt of depreciation and amortizat
expense.

Net cash related to investing activities generadlates to capitalized costs incurred for leasing major building improvements and
acquisition, development, disposition and joint tuea capital activity. During periods of signifidanet acquisition and/or developm
activity, our cash used in such investing actigitiéll generallyexceed cash provided by investing activities, whiglically consists of ca:
received upon the sale of properties and distidimstiof capital from our joint ventures.

Net cash related to financing activities generadlifates to distributions, incurrence and repayneémtebt, and issuances, repurchass
redemptions of Common Stock, Common Units and edeStock. As discussed previously, we use afsigmit amount of our cash to fu
distributions. Whether or not we have increasdbénoutstanding balances of debt during a perigetgs generally upon the net effect of
acquisition, disposition, development and joint tuee activity. We generally use our revolving ctediility for working capital purpose
which means that during any given period, in otdeminimize interest expense, we may record sigaift repayments and borrowings ur
our revolving credit facility.

The change in net cash related to operating aetvih the first quarter of 2013 as compared tc2204s primarily due to higher net c:
from the operations of acquired properties, parffget by higher cash paid for operating expenses.

The change in net cash related to investing a@éviin the first quarter of 2013 as compared to22@hs primarily due to high
acquisition activity in 2013.

The change in net cash related to financing am#vin the first quarter of 2013 as compared t02204s primarily due to higher proce:
from the issuance of Common Stock in 2013 and migkeborrowings in 2013.
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Capitalization

The following table sets forth the Company’s cdjzitdion (in thousands, except per share amounts):

March 31, December 31,
2013 2012

Mortgages and notes payable, at recorded book value $ 1,896,300 $ 1,859,16.
Financing obligations $ 29,25 $ 29,35¢
Preferred Stock, at liquidation value $ 29,077 $ 29,077
Common Stock outstanding 82,13: 80,31:
Common Units outstanding (not owned by the Company) 3,72 3,73¢
Per share stock price at period end $ 3957 $ 33.4¢
Market value of Common Stock and Common Units $ 3,397,24. $ 2,811,27.
Total market capitalization $ 535187 $ 4,728,86!

At March 31, 2013, our mortgages and notes payatdeoutstanding preferred stock represented 36f08ar total market capitalizatir
and 43.9% of the undepreciated book value of csetas

Our mortgages and notes payable as of March 313 20mhsisted of $547.2 millionf secured indebtedness with a weighted avt
interest rate of 5.75% and $1,349.2 million of wwsed indebtedness with a weighted average intesst of 4.44%. The secure
indebtedness was collateralized by real estatesasdh an aggregate undepreciated book value 67 89million .

Current and Future Cash Needs

Rental and other revenues are our principal soofréends to meet our short-term liquidity requirertee Other sources of funds for short-
term liquidity needs include available working dapand borrowings under our existing revolvingditéacility, which had $ 380.4 millioof
availability at April 19, 2013 . Our shoterm liquidity requirements primarily consist of esgting expenses, interest and princ
amortization on our debt, dividends and distribogicand capital expenditures, including building ioyement costs, tenant improverr
costs and lease commissions. Building improvemeangs capital costs to maintain existing buildings typically related to a speci
customer. Tenant improvements are the costs rahjtoreustomize space for the specific needs ofcusts. We anticipate that our availe
cash and cash equivalents and cash provided bwatopgractivities, together with cash available froorrowings under our revolving cre
facility, will be adequate to meet our short-teiquidity requirements.

Our longterm liquidity uses generally consist of the ratient or refinancing of debt upon maturity (incluglimortgage debt, o
revolving credit facility, term loans and other ansred debt), funding of existing and new builditeyelopment or land infrastructure proje
and funding acquisitions of buildings and developtand. Additionally, we may, from time to timestire some or all of our remaini
outstanding Preferred Stock and/or unsecured asttrisies through redemptions, open market repwehgorivately negotiated acquisiti
or otherwise.

We expect to meet our long-term liquidity needstigh a combination of;

» cash flow from operating activitie

e bank term loans and borrowings under our revolgirgglit facility;

» theissuance of unsecured d

» theissuance of secured di

» the issuance of equity securities by the Comparth@Operating Partnership;

» the disposition of norere asset
Recent Acquisition and Disposition Activity

During the first quarter of 2013 , we acquired:
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» two office properties in Tampa, FL encompas$iiig,000 square feet for a purchase price of $52lbm,
e two office properties in Greensboro, NC encomspap 195,000 square feet for a purchase price @i8&3illion, anc
» five acres of development land in Memphis, TNd@urchase price of $4.8 million

We expensed $0.5 million of acquisition costs (ideld in general and administrative expenses) telatehese acquisitions. The as
acquired and liabilities assumed were recordediatvilue as determined by management based ormafmn available at the acquisit
date and on current assumptions as to future apesatWe have invested or intend to invest an audit $ 5.5 millionin the aggregate
planned building improvements and future tenantromements committed under existing leases acquirgde building acquisitions. Bas
on the total anticipated investment of $ 88.8 willi, the weighted average capitalization rate i@sé building acquisitions is 9.086in¢
projected GAAP net operating income for our firely of ownership. These forwalabking statements are subject to risks and uniodiga
See “Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statemént

During the first quarter of 2013, we sold two offiproperties in Orlando, FL for a sale price of $1dillion (before $0.8 milliorin
closing credits to buyer for unfunded tenant imgments) and recorded a loss on disposition of disweed operations of $0.3 million.

On April 15, 2013 , we sold five industrial propestin Atlanta, GA for a sale price of $4.5 milli¢after $0.1 million in closing credits
buyer for free rent) and expect to record a gaidisposition of discontinued operations of lesstfi@.1 million.

On April 24, 2013 , we sold six industrial propegtiand a land parcel in a single transaction iamd, GA for a sale price &38.:
million (before $1.8 million in closing credits tuyer for unfunded tenant improvements and afted &iillion in closing credits to buyer f
free rent) and expect to record a gain on dispositf discontinued operations of $13.2 million .

Recent Financing Activity

During 2012, we entered into separate equity saigeements with each of Wells Fargo Securities, ,LBB&T Capital Markets,
division of BB&T Securities, LLC, Jefferies LLC, Mgan Stanley & Co., LLC and Piper Jaffray & Co. Dgrthe first quarter of 2013the
Company issued 1,299,791 shares of Common Stoodruhédse equity distribution agreements at an geegaoss sales price of $35.98
share and received net proceeds, after sales caiomss of $46.0 million . We paid an aggregate @f7$million in sales commissions
BB&T Capital Markets, a division of BB&T SecuritiecLC, Morgan Stanley & Co., LLC and Piper Jaffi&yCo. during the firsfquarter o
2013.

Our $ 475.0 million unsecured revolving credit fiagiis scheduled to mature in July 2046d includes an accordion feature that al
for an additional $ 75.0 millionf borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occurredhaue
an option to extend the maturity for an additiopadr. The interest rate at our current credit gatiis LIBOR plus 150 basis points and
annual facility fee is 35 basis points. The interage and facility fee are based on the highghefpublicly announced ratings from Moot
Investors Service or Standard & Poor's RatingsiGesv We use our revolving credit facility for warg capital purposes and for the short-
term funding of our development and acquisitionvitgtand, in certain instances, the repaymenttb&odebt. The continued ability to borr
under the revolving credit facility allows us toickly capitalize on strategic opportunities at $fterm interest rates. There wa8%5 millior
and $ 94.5 million outstanding under our revolvargdit facility at March 31, 2013 and April 19, Z1respectively. At botMarch 31, 201
and April 19, 2013 , we had $ 0.1 milli@f outstanding letters of credit, which reduces dkeilability on our revolving credit facility. Aa
result, the unused capacity of our revolving créaldlity at March 31, 2013 and April 19, 2013 wi377.4 million and $ 380.4 million
respectively.

During the first quarter of 2013, we prepaid thmaing $35.0 million balance on a $200.0 millibank term loan that was origine
scheduled to mature in February 2016 .

We regularly evaluate the financial condition of financial institutions that participate in ouedit facilities and as counterparties ur

interest rate swap agreements using publicly availanformation. Based on this review, we currergipect these financial institutions
perform their obligations under our existing fa@i$ and swap agreements.
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Covenant Compliance

We are currently in compliance with the covenamtd ather requirements with respect to our debth@dlgh we expect to remain
compliance with these covenants and ratios foeatithe next year, depending upon our future tipgrperformance, property and financ
transactions and general economic conditions, waateassure you that we will continue to be in chamge.

Our revolving credit facility and bank term loansquire us to comply with customary operating cowsaand various financ
requirements. Upon an event of default on the rénglcredit facility, the lenders having at leaét ®% of the total commitments under
revolving credit facility can accelerate all boriogs then outstanding, and we could be prohibitethfborrowing any further amounts un
our revolving credit facility, which would advergadffect our ability to fund our operations.

The Operating Partnership has the following notesently outstanding ($ in thousands):

Carrying Stated Interest Effective Interest

Face Amount Amount Rate Rate
Notes due in 2017 $ 379,68" $ 379,22 5.85(% 5.88(%
Notes due in 2018 $ 200,000 $ 200,00( 7.50(% 7.50(%
Notes due in 2023 $ 250,000 $ 247,42 3.62%% 3.75%

The indenture that governs these outstanding metgsres us to comply with customary operating cavis and various financial rati
The trustee or the holders of at least 25i0%rincipal amount of either series of bonds careterate the principal amount of such series
written notice of a default that remains uncuredra60 days.

We may not be able to repay, refinance or exterydoarall of our debt at maturity or upon any accatien. If any refinancing is done
higher interest rates, the increased interest esgpeauld adversely affect our cash flow and abitityay distributions. Any such refinanc
could also impose tighter financial ratios and otw/enants that restrict our ability to take agsidhat could otherwise be in our best inte
such as funding new development activity, makingasfunistic acquisitions, repurchasing our seasitir paying distributions.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

During the first quarter of 2013, our DLF Il joiménture sold an office property to unrelated tluedties for a sale price @fL0.1 millior
(after $0.3 millionin closing credits to buyer for free rent) and meleal a gain on disposition of property of less tfi@ril million. As our co:
basis is different from the basis reflected at jbiet venture level, we recorded $0.4 millimf gain through equity in earnings
unconsolidated affiliates.

On April 17, 2013, our DLF I joint venture sold affice property to an unrelated third party fasae price of $6.0 millioand expects -
record a gain on disposition of discontinued openatof less than $0.1 million. We expect to redess than $0.1 million as our share of
gain through equity in earnings of unconsolidatiitiates.

There were no other significant changes to oubaffnce sheet arrangements in the three monthsl étaleh 31, 2013 For informatiol
regarding our off balance sheet arrangements a¢bier 31, 2012 see "Management's Discussion and Analysis ofri€iah Condition an
Results of Operations - Off Balance Sheet Arrangegien our 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Critical Accounting Estimates

There were no changes made by management to tfigalceccounting policies in the three months endéatch 31, 2013 For ¢
description of our critical accounting estimates=e $Management's Discussion and Analysis of Firsr@bndition and Results of Operations -
Critical Accounting Estimates” in our 2012 Annuaport on Form 10-K.

Non-GAAP Information

The Company believes that Funds from Operations@'lF and FFO per share are beneficial to managementrsedtors and a
important indicators of the performance of any BgREIT. Because FFO and FFO per share calculagzokide such factors as depreciai
amortization and impairments of real estate assmdsgains or losses from sales of operating reéateesassets, which can vary among ow
of identical assets in similar conditions basechatorical cost accounting and useful life estirsataey facilitate comparisons of opera
performance between periods and between other REWIBiagement believes that historical cost accagnfor real estate assets
accordance with GAAP implicitly assumes that thtugaof real estate assets diminishes predictabdy tne. Since real estate values t
historically risen or fallen with market conditignaany industry investors and analysts have coresidthe presentation of operating res
for real estate companies that use historical @ospunting to be insufficient on a staaldne basis. As a result, management believegHe
use of FFO and FFO per share, together with theined] GAAP presentations, provides a more completderstanding of the Compar
performance relative
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to its competitors and a more informed and appat@rbasis on which to make decisions involving atieg, financing and investil
activities.

FFO and FFO per share are MBAAP financial measures and therefore do not regreaset income or net income per share as defip
GAAP. Net income and net income per share as difiyeGAAP are the most relevant measures in deténgiithe Company's operat
performance because FFO and FFO per share inctijdstments that investors may deem subjective, ascadding back expenses suc
depreciation, amortization and impairments. Furtt@e, FFO per share does not depict the amounttiwtes directly to the stockhold
benefit. Accordingly, FFO and FFO per share shogider be considered as alternatives to net incametancome per share as indicator
the Company's operating performance.

The Company's presentation of FFO is consistertt WEO as defined by the National Association of IREstate Investment Tru:
(“NAREIT"), which is calculated as follows:

* Netincome/(loss) computed in accordance with G/
e Less net income attributable to noncontrollingriests in consolidated affiliate
» Plus depreciation and amortization of depreciaplerating propertie

e Less gains, or plus losses, from sales of depriecigterating properties, plus impairments on depbde operating properties &
excluding items that are classified as extraorgiitems under GAAP;

* Plus or minus our share of adjustments, includiregpreciation and amortization of depreciable opegatproperties, f
unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventureseflect funds from operations on the same basig); a

» Plus or minus adjustments for depreciation and @iradion and gains/(losses) on sales of depreciapkrating properties, pl
impairments on depreciable operating propertiesi aoncontrolling interests in consolidated afféiatrelated to discontinu
operations.

In calculating FFO, the Company includes net incatteébutable to noncontrolling interests in thee@gting Partnership, which 1
Company believes is consistent with standard ingustactice for REITs that operate through an UPR&tucture. The Company belier
that it is important to present FFO on ancasverted basis since all of the Common Units mated by the Company are redeemable
one-for-one basis for shares of its Common Stock.
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The following table sets forth the Company's FFBQFavailable for common stockholders and FFO abkiléor common stockholde
per share ($ in thousands, except per share amounts

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012

Funds from operations:
Net income $ 13,76( $ 18,33:
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteseim consolidated affiliates (203%) (184)
Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 41,57« 36,44:
Impairments of depreciable properties 41k —
Unconsolidated affiliates:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 2,01t 2,09¢

Impairments of depreciable properties 1,02( 1,00z

(Gains) on disposition of depreciable properties (427) —
Discontinued operations:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 14¢ 1,532

Impairments of depreciable properties 718 —

(Gains) on disposition of depreciable properties (1,244 (5,139
Funds from operations 57,771 54,081
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627)
Funds from operations available for common stockhalers $ 57,15( $ 53,46(
Funds from operations available for common stockhalers per share $ 067 $ 0.7C
Weighted average shares outstanding) 84,86: 76,69¢

(1) Includes assumed conversion of all potentiallytdieiCommon Stock equivaler

In addition, the Company believes net operatingoime from continuing operations (“NOI"and same property NOI are usi
supplemental measures of the Compangtoperty operating performance because such anepriovide a performance measure of
revenues and expenses directly involved in own@s estate assets and provides a perspective natdiately apparent from net income
FFO. The Company defines NOI as rental and otheemees from continuing operations, less rental @rtypand other expenses fr
continuing operations. The Company defines cash &N Ol less straighine rent and lease termination fees. Other REIay ose differer
methodologies to calculate NOI and same property. NO

Our same property portfolio currently consists 8% 2n-service office, industrial and retail propestencompassing 27.8 milliaguar:
feet that were wholly owned during the entiretytta# periods presented (from January 1, 2012 to Mat¢ 2013 ). In our 201&nnual Repol
on Form 10-K, our same property portfolio consisté@84 in-service office, industrial and retaibperties encompassing 25.8 millisguar:
feet that were wholly owned during the entiretytlté periods presented therein (from January 1, 20Tdecember 31, 2012 The change
our same property portfolio was due to the additibeight office properties encompassing 2.1 millsguare feet acquired during 20dric
two newly developed office properties encompas6i2gmillion square feet placed in service durind 20 offset by the removal of twaffice
properties and five industrial properties encomip@s8.3 million square feet qualifying for discamied operations during 2013 .

Rental and other revenues related to propertiesymmir same property portfolio were $15.3 milliand $3.4 million for thehree month

ended March 31, 2013 and 20l2spectively. Rental property and other expensiased to properties not in our same propertyfplotwere
$6.3 million and $2.3 million for the three mon#rsded March 31, 2013 and 2012 , respectively.
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The following table sets forth the Company’s NOtlaame property NOI:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2013 2012
Income from continuing operations before dispositia of condominiums and equity in earnings/(losses¥ o
unconsolidated affiliates $ 12,69¢ $ 11,41
Other income (1,619 (2,230
Interest expense 23,86¢ 24,67
General and administrative expenses 10,58: 9,67
Impairments of real estate assets 41F —
Depreciation and amortization 42,14+ 36,98!
Net operating income from continuing operations 88,08¢ 80,51¢
Less — non same property and other net operatoarie 9,00z 1,13(C
Total same property net operating income from contiuing operations $ 79,08¢ $ 79,38t
Rental and other revenues $ 137,03( $ 124,89«
Rental property and other expenses 48,94 44,37¢
Total net operating income from continuing operatims 88,08¢ 80,51¢
Less — non same property and other net operatoayrie 9,00: 1,13(
Total same property net operating income from contiuing operations $ 79,08¢ $ 79,38t
Total same property net operating income from caritig operations $ 79,08¢ $ 79,38¢
Less — straight-line rent and lease terminatios fee 3,771 6,24(
Same property cash net operating income from contiring operations $ 7531 § 73,14¢
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB OUT MARKET RISK

For information regarding our market risk as of bfaB1, 2013 see "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures étbidarket Risk" it
our 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

SEC rules require us to maintain disclosure cositaold procedures that are designed to ensurenfbatiation required to be disclosec
our annual and periodic reports filed with the SECecorded, processed, summarized and reportéunvitie time periods specified in -
SEC's rules and forms. The Company's CEO and CR@ tancluded that the disclosure controls and plees of the Company and
Operating Partnership were each effective at tideoéthe period covered by this Quarterly Report.

SEC rules also require us to establish and maintaérnal control over financial reporting designedprovide reasonable assure
regarding the reliability of financial reporting &athe preparation of financial statements for exepurposes in accordance with gene
accepted accounting principles. There were no amig internal control over financial reporting ithgr the three months endéiarch 31
2013that materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, the Company's internal cohtreer financial reporting. There we
also no changes in internal control over financgdorting during the three months ended March 81,32hat materially affected, or ¢
reasonably likely to materially affect, the OpeamngtPartnership's internal control over financigaing.
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
During the first quarter of 2013 , the Company é&ban aggregate of 10,08thares of Common Stock to holders of Common Unitké
Operating Partnership upon the redemption of adikeber of Common Units in private offerings exerfiptn the registration requireme
pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act.Eat the holders of Common Units was an accredite@stor under Rule 501 of t

Securities Act. The resale of such shares wastezgs by the Company under the Securities Act.

The following table sets forth information relatéml shares of Common Stock surrendered by emplojeestisfy tax withholdin
obligations in connection with the vesting of reted stock during the first quarter of 2013 :

Total Number of

Shares Average Price
Purchased Paid per Share
January 1 to January 31 — 3 —
February 1 to February 28 — —
March 1 to March 31 30,52: 36.71
Total 30,52: $ 36.71
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
Exhibit
Number Description
10.1 Amended and Restated Executive Supplemental Em@oygreement, dated as of February 12, 2013, leetvle
Company and Edward J. Fritsch (filed as part of@Gbenpany's 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K)
10.2 Amended and Restated Executive Supplemental Em@oy#greement, dated as of February 12, 2013, leetvitee
Company and Michael E. Harris (filed as part of @@mmpany's 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K)
10.3 Amended and Restated Executive Supplemental Em@oy#greement, dated as of February 12, 2013, letvifee
Company and Terry L. Stevens (filed as part ofGoeenpany's 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K)
10.4 Amended and Restated Executive Supplemental Empgoy#greement, dated as of February 12, 2013, leetwitee
Company and Jeffrey D. Miller (filed as part of tBempany's 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K)
12.1 Statement re;: Computation of Ratios of they@any
12.2 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of the Opega#iartnership
31.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 80the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Company
31.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 302 of #sbanes-Oxley Act for the Company
31.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 80the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Operating Pasimier
31.4 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 302 of #s#banes-Oxley Act for the Operating Partnership
32.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 80éhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Company
32.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 906 of #sbanes-Oxley Act for the Company
32.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 80éhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Operating Pastmier
32.4 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 906 of 8zbanes-Oxley Act for the Operating Partnership
101.INS XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation LinldeaDocument
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
101.LAB XBRL Extension Labels Linkbase

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, each of the registrants has dailysed this report to be signed o
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Highwoods Properties, Inc.

By: /sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership
By: Highwoods Properties, Inc., its sole genegatmer

By: Is/ Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: April 30, 2013
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings/(losses) of unconsolidated affiliates
Fixed charges
Capitalized interest
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés
Total earnings

Fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends:
Contractual interest expense
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Financing obligations interest expense
Capitalized interest
Interest component of rental expense

Total fixed charges
Preferred Stock dividends

Total fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Pferred Stock dividends

Exhibit 12.1

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2013

$ 12,69¢

24,91¢
(429)
1,14¢

$ 38,33/

$ 22,79¢

94¢
121
42¢
622

24,91¢
627

$ 25,54¢

1.54

1.5C




HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED UNIT DISTRIBUTIONS

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings/(losses) of unconsolidated affiliates
Fixed charges
Capitalized interest
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés
Total earnings

Fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions:
Contractual interest expense
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Financing obligations interest expense
Capitalized interest
Interest component of rental expense

Total fixed charges
Preferred Unit distributions

Total fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Pferred Unit distributions

Exhibit 12.2

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2013

$ 12,69¢

24,91¢
(429)
1,13¢

$ 38,32t

$ 22,79¢

94¢
121
42¢
622

24,91¢
627

$ 25,54¢

1.54

1.5C




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofivQlof Highwoods Properties, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 30, 2013

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

[, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofivQlof Highwoods Properties, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 30, 2013

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 31.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofvQlof Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerst

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 30, 2013

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer of the GehBeatner




Exhibit 31.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

[, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofvQlof Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerst

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatommny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 30, 2013

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offickthe
General Partner



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsdgroperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q tfoe period endetarch 31
2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Csion on the date hereof (the “Report),Edward J. Fritsch, President and C
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuanil8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 90t Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, tha

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

/s/ Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer

April 30, 2013




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsdgroperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q tfoe period endetarch 31
2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report;)Terry L. Stevens, Senior Vice President
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursua8ta06 of the Sarban&3xley Act o
2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢
2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

April 30, 2013



Exhibit 32.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsoddealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Parth#™”) on Form 109 for the
period ended March 31, 2013 as filed with the Séearand Exchange Commission on the date herbef“@eport”),l, Edward J. Fritscl
President and Chief Executive Officer of Highwod®perties, Inc., general partner of the OperaBagtnership, certify, pursuant to
U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 db#nbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnership.

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch

President and Chief Executive Officer of the GehBeatner
April 30, 2013




Exhibit 32.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsoddealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Parth#™”) on Form 109 for the
period ended March 31, 2013 as filed with the Séearand Exchange Commission on the date herbef“@®eport”),l, Terry L. Steven:
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OfficeHighwoods Properties, Inc., general partner ef @perating Partnership, certify, purst
to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 8@tdarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnership.

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officethe General Partner

April 30, 2013



